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Performance

highlights

Fll.im o

Strong financial performance
and operating cash flow —
enabling investment in skills,
toals and systems for

the future.

25%

reduction in utility strike rates,
achieved through the use of
technology and training.

Achieving Utility
Weel's Supply Chain
Excellence Award

for Anglian Water's ground-
breaking smart metering
programme.

18,000

training records managed
through our bespoke learning
management system.

£1bn ::
order book

Financially resilient and
weli-positioned for growth

by pursuing new opporiunities
within our core sectors

of water and energy.

£20m

investment in systems and
plantincluding £0.5m in fully
electric vehicles.

17%

reduction in energy
consumption and CO,
emissions, on track with our
ambition to reduce emissions
by 50% from 2020 to 2025,

) Annual Report and Accounts 2021 ) 1



]
0
w
=
(2]
=

- m
©
<]




What we do »

We build and maintain smarter,
greener infrastructure networks that
are fit for the future.

We work across major frameworks
and dlliances in water and energy, as
well as supporting ground-breaking
infrastructure programmes.

We are one of the UK's largest privately
owned, independent confractors
- directly employing, training and

supporting 2,200 people across our
network of eight UK offices.

With a 60-year track record in
technical expertise and innovation, we
are committed to confinual investment
in better tools and ways of working -
making lives better for growing families
up and down the UK.

Clancy ) Annual Reportand Accounls 2021 ) 3
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The Clancy Way )

Achieving these objectives relies on shaping a
positive culture. The Clancy Way explains our
goals as a business and the way in which we work
for our people, clients and communities. It's what
makes us special and successful and it guides
everything we do.

)) Our mission
We are here to make life better
for everyone’s growing families.

)) Cur vision
Every day we want to be trusted to deliver
smarter, greener infrastructure — brilliantly.

)) Qur values

We are ambitious for ourselves
and our clients.

We are innovative in how
we think and how we work.

We are easy to do business with
- avaitable and willing to help.

OO S

We do what we say, acting with
integrity in everything we do.

%
13

We care about people
and the planet.

&
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.. STRATEGIC REPORT .

Chairman's stafement

»

Following an extremely challenging and unprecedented
12 months | am delighted to be able to report a positive
set of results for the Group. They ensure Clancy is well-
placed to pursvue further proactive growth as the UK
looks to build back better from the pandemic.

This report is testarnent to the hard work
and adaptability of our team up and down
the UK - reflected in strang performance
both financially in terms of our profitakbility
and cash generation, and also against our
wider goals around safety, environmental
action and sacial value.

The progress made and reported is nat

just a result of what has been achieved
during the 52 weeks but really reflects the
steps we have made as an organisation
over alonger period of three-to-four years.
The work we have done over this period to
strengthen our financial position has helped
us navigate the pandemic.

In line with our five year strategy to 2025,
that same resilience and secure footing
puts us in a positive position to invest for
the future, and be ambitious in targeting
new work that leverages our expertise in
water and energy engineering.

Resilience during the COVID-18
pandemic

We began our financial period with

the UK jocked down as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic and with huge
levels of uncertainty arcund what impact,
bath short and lang term, the pandemic
waould have on our abifity to operate
successfully, During the first guarler we
saw our revenues reduce dramatically due
io circumstances beyend our contral as
sites up and down the UK were closed in
response to Government advice.

Kevin Clancy
Chairman

8 ) Annua!Report and Accounts 2021} Clancy



We were grateful to the Government for

the support provided to protecl jobs and
guard against this uncertainty through the
Corgnavirus Jobs Retention Scheme (CJRS).
This support was essential in enabling us to
avoid significant redundancies and while at
the peak of the pandemic around 500 of our
warkforce were furicughed, the vast majority
have returned to work successfully. This
would not have been possiole without

the CJRS.

Qur business has a long track-record of
innovation and the advent of the pandemic
forced the business to operate differently
throughout the period. { am hugely proud
of how quickly we were able to adapt and
overcome the challenges iaced and amend
our traditional methods of operation. While
the pace of change was driven by the unique
cirgumstances of the pandemic, the use

of technelogy to communicate effectively
supporis our ambitions to digitise and
increase efficiency in haw we work. There
are many aspects of our current method of
operation that we will want to retain as life
starts to return to normal.

With our work predaminately caming from
the utility sectar, after an initial period of
uncertainty in March 2020 the majority of our
workforce were rightly recognised as key
workers that provide an essential service to
our communities. Throughout the period our
teams have worked lirslessly to ensure the
safe provision of water secvices and energy
to customers. We have worked collaboratively
with our clients and strengthened
relationships as we have successfully
addressed the chatlenges that we have
collectively faced.

Planning for the fong-term

Beyend the chalienges of the pandemic,
we have continued to focus on our future
as a well-run and responsible business

- understanding our commitments to act
sustainably in a way that supports the
environment and which builds social value.

In the period under review, we have taken
steps lo strengthen our governance
structures to support a successful mulli-
generational family business that is focused
an the long term To that end we have
consolidated cur ownership structure through
creation of Clancy Group Heldings Limited.
This step is key in simplifying the overal!
shareholding of the business, after over 60
years ¢f operation, and ensures we have an
appropriate structure in place as ownership
aof the organisation begins to transfer lo the
third generation.

Alongside this structural change, we have
continued to strengthen our executive

team. We have buiit on the changes made
previously and despite the challenges of
tockdown have made a number of external
appoiniments as well as some significant
internal promotions. These changes ensure
that we have an excepiional leadership team
in place io drive further improvements in our

Supporting our communities

As a family we have always recognised that
we have a responsibility {o give back to our
communities and support others wherever
passible, and we are proud to do so. In
absolute alignment with this principle we
launched the Clancy Charitabie Foundation
which will provide greater structure arid
direction to aur work in this area in the years
ahead. The foundation is chaired by my
sistér, Mary Clancy, and has three trustees
from the third generation of the family,

Looking 1o the futirre, | believe the work

we have done through 2020-2021 andin
the years immediately preceding it has
ensured that as an organisation we have
saiid foundations in place. This stability

and improved performance, akongside our
existing orderbook and the heighteneg
levels of infrastructure investment that we
are starting to see, means that the Clancy
business is well placed to capitalise on
these opportunities. 1 expect the business to
canltinue making further significant progress
and growth.

operations and capitalkise on the apporiunitias

we see on the horizan.

From a personal point of viaw, 1 am
particularly pleased that one of these key
internal promotions is that of my nephew,

Ronan Clancy. Ronan is the son of my brother

and former joint Chairman Dermot who sadly
passed away at the end of 2019. On 1st

April 2621 Ronan joined the beards of The
Clancy Group Ltd and Clancy Docwra Ltd as
Executive Director respoensible for Strategy
and Business Development. He has worked
in a variety of roles at Clancy for the last 12
years and joins the operating board at an
exciting time for the business.

Clarcy }  Annual Report and Accounts 2021 )
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CEQO's review

»

It is difficult to start any review of the period to
March 2021 without immediately citing what an
extraordinarily challenging period it has been.
Nonetheless, the efforts of our fantastic team,
combined with the long-term work we have done to
shape a resilient business, means that | am able to
reporf a very positive set of results.

Over the period under review we have
operated against the backdrop of the
glabal COVID-19 pandemic and have

had lo continually adapt qur business
operations during the period ic ensure
our ongoing success. Our teams up and
down the UK, the majority of whom were
identified as key workers, have worked
incredibly hard, reacted quickly to constantly
evolving circumstances and shown huge
dedication to the business during a pariod
of major uncertainty.

The pandemic has had a significant impact,
but it has also highlighted the fundamental
strength of our business. As we move
forward we are eager to use this position to
suppart our clients in energy and water to
deliver much-needed operational and capital
investment in thair netwarks, while also
identifying opportunities to grow and build
art our core expertise in adjacent
infrastructure markets.

Our performance

Financially, we have maintained momentumn in
our long-term plan to build a resilient piatform
through which to invest in our future.

Turnover was £255.2 million, a reduction of
£40.0 miltion {14%). While this fallis due in
part to the pandemic it also needs to be
undersiaod in the context of our multi-
year strategy to reduce exposure to loss-
making cantracts.

The success of this strategy is evidenced
by growing profitability. In the period under
review, pre-tax profits increased from

£3.5 miflien to £11.1 miflion, reflecting the
longer trajectory that we have defivered over
several years. Going forward, our focus will
continue to be on contracts where we have
the ability to Jeverage our unique expertise
and resource to be successfut.

Supporting our strategy

The financial performance, however, neads
to be viewed in the context of our wider
business objeclives and achievements that
we continue to make across all areas of our
business plan.

During the previous financial period we
worked hard, both as an executive team and
as a board, to develop a new five-year plan
that provided clear alignment and direction
for the business on aur future ambitions as
we look to build on our successful 60-year
history. The Clancy Way focuses on the
delivery of aur vision of being trusted to
deliver smarter, greener infrastructure
brilliantly through reimagining the ways

in which we waork with our clients to support
the building of 2 more efficient, resilient
and envitonmentaily sustainable
infrastructure sector.

A key fealure of the five-year plan is the
rebranding of the organisation as Clancy.
This step simplifies the overall business both
for employees and clients and has alfowed
us to unify all of our operalions to think and
actas one.

The change has been well received both
internally and extarnally and we are excited
about the potential that the simplifying of our
brand presents.

Unfortunately, the advent of the pandemic
delayed the wider Jaunch and full promotion
of the pian to the business until December
2020. In particular, we recognise the need
to maintain our investment and focus on

our work to understand our impact on the
environment and our contribution to social
value - which will be pricrities for 2021/22.
Nonetheless, | am pleased to report that this
has not prevented significant strides being
made. The plan identifies four key areas of
focus: to reimagine delivery, to become the
amployer of choice within infrastructure,
to harness greener technology and to act
as smart investors,

Matt Cannon
Chief Executive Officer

HS2

Working with C3JV, we are continuing fo
deliver an intensive pragramme of utility
diversions to support track widening for
HS2 at Euston Station.

Reimaginingr delivery

During the period the need to adapt to rapidly
changing circumstances forced theé business
to fundamentally re-think its operational
approath and | am delighted to say that we
have $een huge change for good come from
the pandemic. At the centre of this change
was the need to ensure we were able io
continue operating safely whilst maintaining
utility supplies across the UK.

Safe systems of work were constantly
reviewed and improved, and we worked
closely with key supply chain partners.and
our clients to ensufe appropriate PPE was
constantty available, With the challenge of
aperating within @ COVID-secure environment
the facus could easily have shifted away from
other key risks but | am pleased to highlight
our continying improved perfarmanceé in
avoiding underground utilities. During the
period under review we saw a 25% reduction
in the nuinber of ufility strikes incurred
meaning that gver the last two years we have
reguced strikes by more than 40%.

10 ) Annual Repert and Accounts 2021 )
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The adoption of technology has been a

key feature as we sought to overcome

the challenges presented. In many ways

our communication is now better than it

has ever been, with more frequent, faster
angagemenis. This has nol simply been a
management change but has been adopted
throughout the business, including virtual
toolbox talks and corporale updates serving
to enhance cannécledness acress the group.

We have continued to strive for operational
excellence across our various delivery routes
and have worked in close collaboration with
our clients {o ersure our approach to defivery
is aligned with their strategic goals and the
expectations of thelr customers. It has been
particularly pleasing to see our continued
adoption of suction excavaticn across the
busingss and wa were atso delighted to win
thé Supply Chain Excellence Award at.the
Utility Week Awards.

Becoming the employer of choice
within infrastructure

We know ahd recognise that it is our
employees that make us stand out from the
competition and | am delighled that we have
centinued ta focus on ensuring that people
at all levels across the Clancy business are
able to develop and progress to fulfil their
career anibitions.

Ourmodel of direct employment is a
differentiator for us at a time when the
construction industry as a whole faces
significant ¢hallenges over the availability

of experienéed resaurce. Thé imgatt of a
diminishing initeriiational workforce following
the UK’s exit from the European Union,
combined with increased infrastructure
investment, is set {o exacerbate alongerterm
capacity crunch within the sector as a whole.
Itis therafore essential that we put forward
an attractive and competitive prdposition

s0 that we can attract the talent that we

naed. This has been a major driver behind
investment in.our direct recruitment as well
as continued efforts to bring in hew talents
through our apprenticeship programme and
our suppori for initiatives including the Armed
Forces Covenant.

Despite the restrictions COVID-12 enforced
Lpon us we are extremely proud that we have
delivared over 4,000 training interventions
directly through cur Clancy Academy. White
we have been limited in our ability to deliver
some elements of in-parsan training In recent
maonths, we remain committed ta doing sa
and have invested in new classroom facilities
at our Harefield head office. Going forward
we anticipate a surge of new requirements in
iine with a rigorcus regime of heatth, safely
and environmental quality, not teast to suppart
the transition to net zero.

We have ensured that effective
communication with our workforce has
become a strategic imperative, in December
2020 we rolled out The Clancy Way via a
series of live virtual, interactive briefings

that were a huge success.

The Clancy Way

Despite the limitations of social
distancing, we were able to bring our
entire Clancy team together to launch the
Clancy Way via a series of virtual events
in December 2020,

Leicester Square

Gur work at Leicester Square with UK
Power Networks will replace three 123kyv
transformers located beneath one of the
capital’s bast-known public spaces.

This has been complemented by the
establishment of local updates which take
place live on a monthly basis and corporate
updates every quarter.

During the final quarter, | was thrifed to
launch Celebrating Clancy, our first ever
annual awards programme that is designed
to recognise the exiraordinary things our
tearn deliver every single day, and perhaps
more importantly the behaviaurs our people
demonstrate in the way in which they are
delivered. The awards are peer nominated
and | was privileged and proud to read the
neminations submitted as part of the local
awards programme and am looking forward
to hosling the national awards in the autumn
af 2021,

Harnessing greener technology
for the good of the planet

Throughout the period we have continued

to focus on reducing our impact on the
envirprument and are pleased that as part of our
investment programme gver £0.5 million has
now bieen spent on 100% electric plant and
vehicles. This {s just the start of our investment
in this space as we have committed to aver
20% of company cars being fully electric by the
end of 2022. We are also working closely with a
number of manufacturers to ensure we are well
poised to invesl in the most environmentally
friencly commercial fleet as the vehicles
available become increasingly suitable for our
type of operations in the years ahead

For us the key contritutor to our carbon
emissions is the utilisation of diesel and

| am pieased to report that cur level of
diesel use has reduced during the period
by 17%. Undoubtedly the pandemic and
increased levels of working at home has
played some part in this achievement but
we are fully commitied to ensuring the
trend continues as we invest in enhanced
digital field management tools alongside our
increasingly modern and efficient flaet.

Acting as smart investors

The first quarter was a particularly
challenging period as warks in many key
areas stopped while we, fike many athers,
assessed our ability to continue operating
safely. During this time, it became clear that
a significant amount of our customer facing
activity would simply not be able to continue
as normal.

The maest significant impact of the pandemic
was felt through April - June, where turnover
fell by approximately 20%. We were grateful
at this point for the support provided by
government threugh the Coronavirus Jobs
Retention Scheme (CJRS) when there was
huge uncertainty about what the future

held. During the first quarter around 500

of our team were placed on furlough which
enabled us to keep these roles open

during a temporary drop in activity. The
overwhalming majority have now returned to
work successfulty.

The strong foundations and continued
prafitability have enabled the businass to
invest significantly in its longer-term success
and the largest ever capital investment
programme was undertaken during the
year, Over £20 million was invested in

plant, equipment and technology over the
period and we expect to see similar levels of
investment continue.

Alcngside our capital investment
programme we have also invested heavily
in strengthening our executive team through
anumber of key external hires as well as
internal promatians. | believe that the work
done in this space will ensure that we are
well positioned both o successfully deliver
our business plan and capitalise on the
opportunities we see ahead of us across the
infrastructure sector both with existing and
potential new clients.

Looking forward, whilst the COVID-19
pandemic is not fully behind us, we believe
great strides have been made in the UK,
supporied by the success of the vaccination
pragramme, and | am hopeful that in the
coeming months we will continue to see
restrictions ease and life start o return to
near norrnality

At Clancy we believe we have every reason
to be pasitive about the future as we look

to continue delivering further improvements
across our arganisation. With a current
order bock of over £1 billion we have the
security needed to continue investing in our
long-term success and we are aptimistic
about the future.

Clancy )
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Operational review

¥ Smart metering
with Anglian Water

N

We began the period having successfully extended
or renewed our long-standing framework contracts
in England within water and energy. The contribution
that these contracts make to our robust £1 billion
order book ensures we have the visibility to invest in
the skills, tools and materials that we need.

Going forward, this strong pipeline will
support a strategy of targeted diversification
grounded in our speciatisms within energy
and waler, We see continued cpporiunities
for our expertise in utility connections

to support the capital investment within
infrastruciure being seen across the UK.
This includes invesiment in water and

green energy, but also adjacent seclors
such as rail.

Water and wastewater

Water remains our core sector, Consistently
accaunting for over 75% or our activity,
and the majarity of our work in this area

is secured until the end of Ofwal's Asset
Management Period in 2025. It was also
the first year of our new contract with South
East Water, and we have been warking
closely with the client to deliver to its
revised expectations.

We have been pariicularly delighted lo learn
that we have been successful in winning

a new caontract with Scotlish Water with

the potential to run for the next 12 years.

It will see us deliver water and wastewater
services across the country. The renewed
framework effectively daubles the size of
aur business in Scotland.

We will adopt a new operationat magel of
regionally-based teams that helps deliver
greater efficiency and econamic rasilience,
while embedding carbon neutrality to ensure
Scottish Water reaches net zero by 2030

The pandemic meant that certain
workstreams were temporarily suspended,
especially those invalving customer visits
and those in sensitive geagraphies, but
the majority of our work was deemed
essential and therefore able to continue
once suitably adapied.

South East Water

Aprit 2021 marked the successiul
completion of our first year working
in a renawed partnership with
South East Water.

Smart metering, Anglian Water
Delivering cne of the world's mast
ambilious metering programmes

¥ Fout-year programme ta transform
walet management

% Replacing 1,000 meters per day

Working as part of Anglian Waler's
metering and developer services alliance,
we are dalivering one of the largest

and most ambitious smart metering
programmeas in the world across the
East of England. Over the next four years
we are due fo exchange over 877,060
water meters for smart meters —

a programme that will help reduce bills
for customers and save waler as the
region faces increased water scarcity
due to climate change.

The programme is being delivered jointly
with Kier and has been inspired by
Farmula 1's pitstop model - identifying
smali changes to the planning, fogistics
and installation process to achieve a daily
meter target of 1,000. This investment
has seen successes both in efficiency
and quality, saving £1 million per year
and sending the rate of input errors
plummeting down by 72%.

12 ) Annual Report and Accounts 2021} Clancy



¥} The new pipeline at
Chasterton Farm

Energy
Chesterton Farm, Thames Water
Critical infrastructure to support
new homes

Our work in energy sees us supgort two of
the UK's District Network Operators as they
maintain, expand and adapt their assets to

% E8.5m contract value mest the demands facing a modern netwark.
In the North East working for Northarn . . .
Powergrid we secured the renewal of our : LT
main framework contract for an initial period : '
of twa years until June 2022 and are now
warking alongside the client to extend this
refationship further in preparation for the

new price control period from 2023, with the
option to carry the existing framewaork forward
until 2024. We have also picked up & wider
range of services for the client, including
work on the overhead network. Our success
in the region follows the changing strategy

we adapted in 2019 to engage in a more
collabarative contracting relationship - one
that sees us drive greater efficiency benefils
for Northern Powergrid and its customers,
together with improved margins.

1 3.8km of gravity sewer and a new
pumping station

M Innovative excavation and pipehandling
Atlas Road, UK Power Networks
Working with our jpint-venture partner Kier Supporling HS2
as KCD, Clancy is delivering a major new
wastewater pipeline for Thames Water to
support the-development of new homes
at Girencesler in Gloucesltershire.

% Successfully delivered a new
substation in West Londorn to drive
HS2 tunnel boring machines

% Navigaling existing infrastructure
assets with a 450 metre horizontzl bore

With a 18 month-build programme, the
scale of the praject - aver 3.8 kilomelres
of mainly agricuttural land - has pravided
1 the apportunity to invest in trialling a series

of new tools to drive both efficiency and
safety on the project. This includes the
innovative PipeMac system, develdped
by Delantor Entetprises which lays
pipework in an cpen trench using a
combination of laser guided handling
and automated compacting.

The need to generate additional capacity
in the London network is being driven

not only by housing and commaercial
devalapmant, but alse to suppart major
infrastructure investment. At Old Oak
Comymon, we have been working hard to
deliver a new slectricity feed that will drive
the tunnel boring machines for H52.

in London and the South East we have
maintained momentum on UK Power
Networks’ ambitious £.2 hillion capital
investment programme within the EB150N
contracting afliarce, securing an extension
to the framework untit March 2024, Within
the alliance we have established Clancy as
the supplier of choice for complex heavy
civil engineering projects - from major
connections to suppert HS2, to a challenging
sub-siaticn renewal programme in the heart
of the capital's Leicester Square

This ability to collaborate and innovate
with the supply chain has énabled the
project to Santipue thraugh the COVID19
pandemic without jecpardising the
programme. |t is due to complete in
Autumn 2021, ahead of schedule.

The projectincludes a full new substation
build with a switch house and three

new transformers - delivering a tota!
capacity of up to 22mva. The lecation

of the substation alongside the Grangd
Union Canai as well as network rail assets
has required a cormplex 450 metre bore

1o carry the cabling, achieved through
directional drilling, The project exemplifies
the range of our engineering expertise,
including to deliver the structuratl steslwork
for the substation bulld, tagether with

the use of low carbon concrete within

tha structure.

While the focus of many of our core
frameworks includes maintaining

essential infrastructure, we continue to
demonstrate our expertise fo deliver major
civil engineering projects across the
network, most notably as part of our KCO
Joint Venture within the Thames Water
Infrastructure Aliiance. in May we also
announced that we had secured a position
on Thames Water's framework for capital
programmes and have invested in our team
in readiness for significant packages of work,

Clancy )} Annual Report and Accounts 2021} 13
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1 The new glasshouses

Low Carbon Farming
Powering up food production

W 7km of muiti-utility pipework to power
72 acres of modern greenhouse

M Interface betwean investor Greencoat
Capital and Anglian Water

¥ Building expertise in green snergy
from wastewater

Deploying cur expertisa in utility
engineering, 2020 saw us deliver a major
programme of works to support two state-
of-the-art glasshouses in East Anglia.

The project, backed by investor Greencoat
Capital, captures excess energy from
Anglian Water's wastewater network to
pravide heat for growing vegetables within
the two giant structures.

Clancy’s role has been to execute the
compiex connections between the heat
exchange building and the greenhouses
- g total of 7km multi-utility pipework that
saw us use drone technology and suction
excavalion to map and build across
chalienging terrain.

Completed over 12 months, the
glasshouses went into commission in
2021. in total the fow carpon fuel scurce
provides 95% of the heat required to
produce 12% of the UK's tomatoes.

Civil engineering

Ciancy has its roots in civil engineering, and
we continue to see significant opportunities to
deploy our expartise within utilities to support
major investment in UK infrastructure with the
high-quality network connactions needed to
make these schemes a success.

Qur enabling work for H32 has continued at
pace, facused around moving wtilities to allow
the main works to proceed unimpeded. Qur
recognised expertise at complex schemes in
congested areas means we are now working
for two of the delivery joint ventures — CSJV
(Costain Skanska) and SCS JV (Skanska
Costain Strabag) with works for EKFB
(Eiffage, Kier, Ferravial Canstruction and Bam
Nuttall} having started.

Within the private sector, we successfully
completed the innovative Low Carbaon
Farming scheme, expanding our scope

to work as Principal Contractar due to

the consistently high standard of our
delivery. These exciting schemes are now
commisstoned and performing ahead of
expectations, and we are optimistic around
opportunities to leverage the extensive
technical expertise that we hoid in the future.

Plant

Clancy Plant was criginally established

to supply high-quality equipment o our
contracting and engineearing businass in

a way that is safe and efficient, and that
remains its roke today. We believe that having
best-in-class equipment in a consistent and
distinctive livery sets our business apart.

It brings us aversight and control over

safe working practices, and it presents a
professional image to our clients and their
customers.

To underpin this, we have invesied a record
amount in equiprment, bath renewing and
expanding our fleet.

Cwning our own plant also allows us to be
more innovative as a business. We actively
seek out new and more efficient ways of
waorking, many of which are enabled by
technolagy. A geod example of this is our
continuad investrnent in suction excavators,
which allow our teams to work mare efficiently
and gafaly, The other significant event has
been our investment in green technclogy;

in line with this, we now own and operate a
growing fieet of electric vans and cdrs to help
our commitrment and thasie of our clients ta
work towérds a zero carbon fulure.

Clancy Plant
Investing in innovation

For several years we have been focused
on how new plant technology can deliver
greater productivity on site. Over the

last 12 months we have continued cur
investment in suction excavation, with
eight owned machines now in placé
across qur contracts. This commitment
reduces waste, allows greater precision in
excavation to minimise the risk of a utility
strike, and dramatically improves safety
when working.

We have also cantinued to invest in our
reinstatement processes and tools, rolling
oul a fleet of asphalt hot boxes. These
traifered devices allow us o deliver hot
asphalt directly to sites as part of rhain
excavation works — minimising the need
far a separate team to visit the site,
theraby reducing the time and disruption
associated with reinstatement.
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Traffic management

Qur traffic management business has
continued to grow. We previously reported
thal we had won twao significant external
frameworks, which we expected to mobilise
fully at the end of lockdown. That process
continues, and in the meantime, we are
seging strong further growth opportunity.

It is a competitive market, bul we believe

that we have a uniqus offer: cur electronic
works management system provides quality
assurance, wea have an in-house Variablg
Messaging Sign offering, and we have
access to the financial resources of Clancy to
invest in the best equiprment available.

Discontinued business

In line with our strategy we have continued
our progress to exit non-cere business.

Multi Utility

We reported previously that we were
progressing with our exit from this secter, and
hoped to complete the process by September
2020. The process of novating contracts took
longer than anticipated, but we are pleased o
report the exercise is now concluded.

Residential Development

We previously reported that we hag
completed censtruction and would aim to
dispose of ail remaining residential units i
the period under review. In the event, the
lackdown slowed the market and we finished
with 14 remaining properties. At the time

of reporting, interest is strong due to the
extension of the stamp duty holiday.

Key performance indicators

The group has consistently measured its
safety, operational and financial performance.
Highlights from our performance in the 52
week perind ended 28 March 2021 inclucle:

Y Eapanding our remit in
traffic management

Safety Performance

1. Service strikes.
Damaging buried or overhead electricity,
gas, water and telecoms services is a
key risk in our activities, as it can cause
serious injury or worse to our workforce
or members of the public, as well as
causing disruption. In the period under
review we achieved a reduction of 26%
(89) on the previous period (261 v 350).
33% {85) of the service slrikes relate lo
gas mains which are often difficuft to
detect and trace. Whilst our performance
has improved consistently cver a number
of years, we wiil continue o run Service
Avoidance Campaigns lo reduce the
number further.

2. Losttime incidents ('LTls").
These are any work-related incident that
resuits in a werker being absent due to
sustaining an injury. The number of LTls
has increased by 1 from 10 in 2019/20 to
11 in 2020/21. Whilst the majorily of injuries
have been minor, we believe all injuries
are avoidable and we continue to hold
Exsculive Board Panel reviews for every
significant incident to ensure that any
lessons are leamed and shared.

tCO.e {"equivalent tonnes of CG;')
reduction:

We are pleased to report a reduction of

7% in our energy consumption and CO:
emissions versus the prior period, on a like
for like basis. Whitst some of the improvemant
will be due to the pandemic, with lower
aclivily levels and less travel, we noneiheless
achieved an improvement in the intensity
ratio, which takes account of turnover, of more
than 6% (75.19 tCO.e per millien pounds

of turnaver for 2020 - 2021, compared to
80.41 tCO.e per million pounds of turnover
for 2019 - 2020). More detail can be found in
our Streamlined Energy & Carbon {'SECR')
report on page 68-69.

Auto-Green traffic signals, Balfour
Beatty / Anglian Water
Keeping customers moving

B improving safety, reducing waste and
maximising efficiency by investment in
smart signalling

% Ongaing investment in new technelogy
to deliver better customer journeys

Working with Balfour Beatty delivering a
major network upgrads for Anglian Water,
Clancy Traffic provided a bespoke salution
to managing vehicle flows al Scotter Road
in Scunthorpe duting the Autumn of 2020.

The crucial element of the scheme
required two-way temporary traffic fights
to be in place for six weeks over a 300
metra stretch of busy highway. To help
increase efficiency and mitigate disruption
to drivers, the team deployad innovative
Auto-Green lights, which can be
pregrammed to automatically respond to
traffic conditions to optimise vehicle flows.

As well as increasing traffic fiows by up
to 24%, the use of tha lights enabled
the team to make the case to the local
highways autharity to reduce personnel
levels on site by 50% from two to one -
bringing down costs for the project
and beneiitting the management of
health and safety. ’

The investment in Auto-Green lights

and our appreach to fraffic management
were significant in securing a positive
response from the local community

lo the management of the works -
cantributing to Anglian Water’s overall
customer measure of experience (C-Mex)
score for customer satisfaction.
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Our impact

% Atcolbox talk at
Euston for H52

»

The activity we undertake as a business gives us a responsibility and an
opportunity to positively impact individual lives, communities and the environment.
This has been especially clear to us during the pandemic, when our team has been
delivering essential services to communities in a time of crisis.

Throughout the period under review, we have
continued {o dedicate resource, time and
funds to developing our culture of safety, our
investment in people, and our wider efforts to
deliver social value to growing familigs both
within and beyoend our business.

One area where we recognise we can and will
do mare is around quantifying this valye and
the impact that our work has. Our employment
model is designed to bring job security to
families in the communities in which we

work. The work that we daliver on utility
networks - which extends to every kilometre
of the UK ~ means that we are in a unique
pasition to deliver ecanamic benefis as
directly as possible intc communities, while
also maximising contributions through the

tax base via PAYE because we are a direct
employer. At the same time, we recognise that
the activity we suppart an essential services
has a wider social value. As we maintain
marhentum on aur future strategy, we are
taking sleps ta increase our understanding of
this cantribution and how it can be extended.

Safety

The health, safety and welibeing of our
teams and the communities we work inis
of paramouni importance to us Driven at
executive board level, we have cantinued
our work to sustain and develop the health,
safety and wellbeing agenda through all
levels of the business.

QOur focus on safety has continued to
deliver results, as demonstrated by our key
statistics. Our number of service incidenis
reduced by 25% over the previous period.
This is the second successive year of
improvement it this area. We have also
maintained our Accident Frequency Rate
of 1.4, which is significantly below the
construction industry average.

In the periad under review the number of Lost
Time Incidents stood at 11 - a 10% increass
on the previous period. Alkhough we are
disappointed by this, the overall movement
over the longer term is a significant reduction.
Returning to this trajectary will be a focus
going farward. We are sesing a significant
improvemeant in the leve!l of near miss
reporting which is encouraging in our efforts
o improve our standards and put preventaiive
measurgs in place,

In line with our commiiment, we have
strengthened our Health and Safety team.
We have created & new role of Director of
Health, Safety, Environment and Qualily
{HSEQ) which reporis directly to the Chief
Executive Officer as well as being a member
of the Executive Team. The Director of HSEQ
attends Board meelings to report on our
safety performance and future strategy.

We are proud of how our whole businass has
adapted to the new chaltenges presented by
COVID-18, and our HSEQ ieam has worked
closely with our clients and operational teams
{o develop COVID-secure procedures that
comply with Public Health England guigelines
and the Construction Leadership Council Site
Operating Procedures,

Our approach was, and continues to be,

to provide a safe working environment by
minimising the risk of spreading the virus,
both within our workforce and to the general
public, and to enable our frontline workers to
continue to provide essential services safely
through different tigrs of lockdown,

This has been made possible by innovating,
allowing briefings, toalbox talks, safety stand-
downs and incident reviews 1o continue in

an adagted format. We have also continued
to provide safety-critical training, and have
taken steps to further pratect our workers
from occupational health risks by increasing
our level of health surveillance to all staf,
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Our people

Making life better for growing families
Qur abjective is for Clancy 1o be an employer
of choice. Through our direct employment
modet we want 1o engage and empower

our people to delivar srarter, greener
infraslruclure - brilliantly.

The launch of the Ctancy Way in December
2020 is a centrat parl of this strategy,
establishing a clear vision and mission for our
business that cur peopie can understand,
support and drive through our values.

A riverse and inclusive business

Our 2,200 strong team already brings
together a huge range of experiences and
backgrounds, However, we recognise that
as a business and a sector as awhole,

we can build greater strength and resilience
by allracting and welceming a wide paol

of talent.

[n fine with the diversity and inclusion
pathway we established in 2018, we
established a new Diversity and Inclusion
Council. The council will play a pivotal role in
promoting and fostering a cutture that values
diversity, equality and inclusion at Clancy,

as well as in the communities we serve -
reflecting our mission to make lives better
for growing families.

Animportant early focus for the council

has been an education, including training
ta tackle unconscious bias and wider
communication of the diversity and
inclusion agenda through our Clancy Cares
programme - a calendar of activities to
celabrate diversity within our business.

Attracting now talents

We have invested in a complete overhaul of
our recruitrment stratagy - ensuring we are in
a strong position to attract new talent.

This has seen us move from almost 100%
reliance on agencies outside of jocal

site recruitment to a centralised madel.
Approximately 95% of all reles are now
directly hired, supported by our newly
implemented applicant tracking system (ATS)
via the bespoke Clancy Careers porial.

This operationat shift is supported by a
cultural change. By taking direct control of
recruiiment, we are able to professionaliy
communicate the unique opportunities thal
our business provides, posilioning new
roles in the context of employee stories
and case studies.

This in turp supperts and is supported by
the cannections we hold with third parties
to expand our network of candidates -
including the Career Transitions Networl,
Disability Confident, Women in Utilities and
Etf Jabs.

We continue to maintain our apprenticeship
programme, with 12 members of a new
cohorl joining the business at the start of
2021 — up from three in 2020 which was a
temporary reduction as a consequence of
COVID-19. Since 2015, we have brought

a total of 111 apprentices through our
business, as well as supporting 26 people
with their development journeys through
upskilling apprenticeships.

Evolving our skills strategy

We have invesled in a new leamning
management system (LMS), which is

now fully operational. The LMS gives us
complete visibility across around 18,000
training recerds, allowing us to assess
competencies across the team and identify
both requirements and opportunities for
additional skills development.

New training programmes can now be
designed §-12 months in advance, reducing
reactive training requests by over 80% in two
years. The system automates renewals for
319 certification routes, making sure that key
quzlifications do not lapse. The system has
aflowed us to centralise and drive efficiency
in our skills strategy, creating access by
managemeant, supervisor and health and
safety teams. It also removes barsiers to
employees locking to take up additional
training, by enabling them to baok-on lo
courses 24/7.

Throughout the disruption we have worked
hard to maintain critical accreditations
required by our team, as well as sustaining
our long-term training programme to support
upskilling and career progression. In total
this has seen us deliver 4,000 training
intarventions through a combination of
e-learning and hands-on training in

a COVID-secure way

The Learning Maitagement System
Customer experience is a critical area

of facus for us and our glients, and the
impartance of good communication to
explain and reassure members of the
public about our wark has been even more
critical through the pandemic. Through

the LMS our in-house team designed a
failored e-learning programme for South
East Water covering the new customer
méasure of experience (C-MeX) and
develeper services measure of experience
{D-MeX). The programme has already
been rolled cut to 60% of our target
cohort; and will now be extended further
across our wider tearn,

Celehrating Clancy

In March 2021 we celebrated our first
company-wide award programme.
Individuals and teams from across the
business were nominated against a range
of categories, with accolades awarded
across each client contract and service
team within the Clancy business. Winners
will be shortlisted and put ferward for a
Group Award, with an event due to be held
at our head office in the autumn of 2621,
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¥ An electric excavator working
with Bcottish Water

Supporting our team

The construction sector as a whole is facing a
significant capacity challenge. Infrastructure
investment backed by Government to
stimulate the economic recavery is ceinciding
with long-term skills shortages within the
industry. The sector is also adapting to the
departure of elements of an international
warkforce post the UK's exit from the
Eurepean Union.

Against this backdrop it is essential that we
continue to retain talent within cur business
and fo leverage our direct employment
model to offer an attractive and competitive
propaosition to our employees. While
employee chum did fall during the period, we
recognise that the pandemic will have played
a rolé in this. We expanded cur Employee
Assistance Programme which includes a
series of measures to support our team,

including providing a fréé counselling service.

Promating and raising further awareness

of this programme is a priority for us going
forwased, and we will also cantinue to review
aur wider gackage of benefits — including aur
voluntary benefits platfarm — Clancy Xtras -
and the pravision of ¢riticat iliness cover.

Celebrating success is another essential
part of our programme. We introduced a
new cross-business awards programme,
Celebrating Clancy, to recagnise exceptiona
ingdividuats and teams who reflect our core
business valuas.

During the period we have recognised the
exlraordinary impact that the pandemic has
had on the lives of our team and their families.
Early 6n we took steps to establish rapidly
available and accessible employee hardship
loans to support those in challenging
circumstances — including thase who were on
furtough, or where wider household income
beyond our employnient had been affected
by the pandemic.

Environmental sustainability

Acting sustainably is fundamenial to our
business and as part of our future planning,
we have made a series of commitments to
reduce the impact of our work and shift our
focus to environmental betterment, These
include reducing direct emissions and
embodied carbon, as well as presesving
biodivérsity and protecting habitats.

We recognise that we have a pivotal role

to play both as an employer and a supply
chain pariner — and that we must work
collaboratively with our valué chain to deliver
construction activities sustainably. For this
reasori our sustamability agendais informed
both by the future vision of the arganisation
and by operationat assessments of where
our action will defiver the biggest benefits

to the environment.

At a contract level, we are making headway
in the development of operationally led
Environment and Sustainability Management
Plans which align our ambitions to those of
our clients. Already in place for some of our
major frameworks in water and energy, these
plans set out a continuous iImprovement
pathway as we transition to 2 more
envircnmantaily sustainable society

Tackling emissions

Much of aur core client base within energy
and water utilities shares a common target of
reducing greenhouse gas emissions to net
zero by 2030. We are committed to achieving
this goal 20 years ahead of the UK national
target and have also backed our own interim
objective to reduce operational carbon
emissions by 50% by 2025.

We have maintained momentum on this
target, with our measured, absolute emissions
across pur organisation falling from 23,652.8
tCOze in 2019-20 down o 19,2981 tCO:ein
2020-21. Measuring emissicens in relation to
turnover over the same two periods we also
shew a reduction, from 80.4 to 75.2 tCOz2 per
million pounds of turnover.

This performance has been driven through

a focus on reducing and replacing the most
significant contributor to our emissions
foatprint - fuels for transport. Over the

period we have reduced our consumption

by tdrgeting intelligent journey planning.

New technolagy platferms including our
Associated Management Systeni {AMS) in
traffic management, and ourJobflow warks
management systern have been instrumental,

We will continue to invest in new tocls and are
triafing new piatiorms such as that provided
through Techfinity to érisure our systems
maintain pace with new developments. These
platforms also support our move to go fulty
digital as a business by 2025, remaving
paparwork and efficiently improving the way
we work.

We will also continue to address our fuel
consumption through our fleet replacement
pragramme, targeting the electrification of
our vehicles. Over the next 12 manths we
estimate that 20% of cur vehicles will need
to be replaced, providing the opportunity to
identify more sustainable options.

Harnessing greener technology

These efficiency-driven reductions in
emissions are supported by longerterm
steps to look at how we can decarbonise
our work, based on a carbon reduction
hierarchy of build nothing; buitd less; build
clever; build efficiently.

In this, we are reliant on new technology and
products and have initiated investment in
slectric vehicles where these can meet the
strength and durahility requirements of our
wark. This includes a £0.5 million investment
in our new electricity-powered car and

van fleet. as well 2 the roll-out of electric
charging points across our depots.

Managing waste risks and opportunities
An additional major focus for Clancy is on
managing materials that we excavate from
sites in & way that complies with regutations,
while also taking the opportunity to recycte.
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Directional drilling, Thames Water
Minimising environmental impacts

We recognise that early application ef the
carpon reduclion hierarchy will resultin
delivering the best possible reductions

al the end of our projects. During design
and pre-canstruction we evaluate differing
construction methodologies ta limit our
interaction with the enviranment.

Often, as a result of this process, we

will adopt Hydraulic Directional Drilling
(HDD) in preference o traditional open cut
methodologies. Drilling offers significant
benefits to the environment:

= Less disturbance to surroundings,
allewing infrastructure such as roads
and rail to continue to cperaie;

= less dislurbance to ground, reducing
trenches across impaortant landscapes
and can be used 10 avoid hedgerows
and woodlands;

= Less waste generated, adopting the
waste hierarchy of avoidance and
reduction;

«  Less backfill aggregate required,
reducing our dependency on natural
resources, and reducing the number of
deliveries to site.

All these benefits were gained on one of
Clancy's recent projects through working
within the KCD joint venture and our
supply chain. The project, at Bearwood
Lakes Goif Course in Berkshire, laying
1.175 metres of 125mm polable water
main, delivered the following real-world
reductions by adopting HDD:

= B85% less excavation waste and backfill
material;

= 71% reduction in tarmac for
reinstatemant;

= B86% reduction of lorry movements.

To navigate restrictions or our waste supply
chain during the first national lockdown in
2020, we took an innevalive approach to
creating our own aggregate maierial at our
depots. As well as providing security of
supply, il also enables us lo put in place a
more efficient process to manage waste,
reduce carban emissions and avoid double
handiing of waste arisings.

While these steps wers initiatly borne of
necessity, we aim to now build on this modetl
to tackle the challenges around material
waste in a way that aligns with mare stringent
classification measures being introduced by
the Environmert Agency. We will continue 1o
work with Street Waorks UK Lo develop a new
low cost, sustainable and rigk appropriate
solution to the classification of waste,

Supporting communities

Clancy has a long history of lending suppart
{o causes that are important to our local
communities and our own team. We launched
the Clancy Foundation which will support
community projects @nd organisations. The
Feundation is part of our commitment to
suppoart good causes, in line with our mission
as a businéss.

The Foundation was established with initial
funding of £200,000, a significant proportion
of which has been allocated fo the Lighthouse
Club, which pravides emotional, physical and
financial wellbeing support to construction
workers and their families. As we move
forward the Foundation's focus will be on food
poverty, youth unemployment and mental
health - ali of which resonate especially due
6 the impact of the panderhic over the last
twelve months.

Alongside the Foundation, we continue to
support smaller initiatives and were pleased
to be able'to donaté plant and equipment to
creale a new Heating Garden at Harefield
Hospital, which: is located close to our head
office. The specialist nature of this heart
and lung hospital means that patients will
often spend extended periods of time at the
hespitat and the garden will now provide
easily accessible outside space for patients
and their visitors to spend time in as they
undergo treatment and recovery.

River Test, Southern Water
A sensitive approach to flood management

At Clancy we can support a variety of
wider development projects through
activities enabled within our utilities
divisions. An example of this includes

a project in 2020 where the business
delivered a potable water mains diversion
to support an Environment Agency Flood
Adleviation Scheme (FAS) in Romsey,
working with Southern Water

The Romsey FAS was designed to address
flooding issues in the town of Romsey.
Romsey was significantly impacted during
the: flooding of winter 2013/14 with up to 30
properties flooded internally from various
sources. Fhe majority of the fluvial flood
risk lies to the west of the town as it foliows
the main River Test channel.

This technically challenging project,
enabling the update of flood contral
structures, involved a 300mm

potable water mains diversion across
approximately 600 metres of a flood plain
and over the River Test by attaching a pipe
bridge to a floed control structure.

To add to the engineering complexities
the solulion was laid within a designated
Eurgpean protecied site (Site of

Special Scientific [nterest), requiring
archaeological supervision and mitigation
to protect impertant native UK witdlife.
The project is now complete and is a
leading example of how to manage
projects within environmentaily complex
and sensitive sites,
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Despite the significant uncertainty around the COVID-19

pandemic, our resilience as a business and focus on

essential services saw us maintain the positive financial
trajectory that we have seen delivered over the previous
period - delivering higher profitability that is supporfing
our long-term investment in the business.

Financial headlines

Revenue and profit

Turnover for the period under review
was £255.2 million, which was down
by £40.0 million {14%) on the prior
period. Approximately half of this
reduction was as a consequence of
ouf suceessful exit from loss-making
business over the period, with the
pandemic also playing a significant
role during the first guarter when
turnover fell by around 20%.

Wark volumes réturned in the secand
quarter and over the year we estimate
that COVID-19 was the cause of a

5% drop in revenue. Pre-tax profits
increased from £3.5 miilien to £111
million, reflecting our efforts over

the past three financial periods to
facus on contracts where we can be
successful and improve our delivery.

Cash position

We continued our strong EBITDA" to
cash conversion, albeit we invested
the majority of our cash flow in

a significant capital expenditure
programme This was largely carried
out without borrowings.

We also made an exceptional
contribution of £2.0 million to the
defined benefit pension scheme.

This has enabled us to reduce the
deficit of that scheme and ensure it

is on a sustainable focting to support
fermer Clancy employees. More detail
on this can be seen in nota 28 to the
financial statements.

Assets

Net assets for the Gropp at 28 March
were £39.4 million, versus a prior
period caomparative of £41.8 million.

The movement is made up of the
profit for the period, movements in
the defined benefit pensicn scheme,
dividends paid and changes to the
capital structure.

Nick Blaber
Chief Financial Officer

Gontinued || Discontinued 2021 Continued || Discontinued 2020
operations operations operations operations
[ _
Revenue £243.5m £5.8m || £255.2m £274.7m £20.9m |}£2956m
Grass F£28.2m {E1.8my} 1 £24.5m E27.1m {£5.5m) E21.6m
profit/(loss}
Profit/(loss) £12.8m (£1.8m) £11.tm £9.1m {£5.5m) £3.5m
befare tax
2021 2020
{ Net cash inflow from operating activities £22.6m £20.1m
Net cash (used iny/generated from investing activities (£15.0my) £1.8m
Net cash used in financing activities J (E7.5m) {£5.8m)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period £21.9m E21.9m
2021 2020
Net current assets ] £9.0m £14.3m
Net assets £39.4m £41.8m

“Earmings Before intarast Taxes Depraciation and Amorlizatian.
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Capital investment

The Group invested a record £19.9 million

in tangibie fixed assets in the period under
review, the majority being in plant and
machinery. This includes & grewing spend on
increasing our zero carbon fleet. In line with
our five-year plan, we are also overhauling
our business systems to support further
improvements in our operational delivery.

Work management software

We are investing in our technology
platforms to ensure we offer best-in-class
tools for cur team while retaining the ability
to interface with cur clients’ systems. On
our Northern Powergrid contract we have
been trialling new software from a partner
Techfinity that wili speed up the pace at
which we can identify, delegate and close
jobs - improving custorner experience,
remaving paper-based systems from our
processes and providing greater visibility
for our reparting.

Financing

Our appraach to financing continues

to be to operate withaut debt bui with
available facilities to cover any short-term
working capital needs. Our continued high
conversion of EBITDA to operating cash
flaw has allowed us to reduce bank facilities
during the year, now consisting solely of

a £5.0 million averdraft facility, which was
undrawn throughout the period. We took the
opportunity to repay our bank loan ahead of
time. Our strong cash flow has allowed us

to re-align our capitai base by issuing £10.4
million of non-redeemable preference shares
and we expect this io further reduce any
reliance on external funding.

The majority of our capital expenditure

has been from cash reserves, reducing
our berrowings. However, aven afler this
increased investment, our continued strong
operational cash flow allowed us to record
a medest cash inflow.

Pension scheme

As mentioned above and consistent with our
ambition to be the employer of choice, we
have taken a further step towards eliminating
our final salary pension scheme deficit

by making an exceptional contribution of
£2.0 million in addition to our agreed deficit
recovery plan. Combined with improved
invesiment returns, this has reduced our
balance sheet deficit from £3.6 million ta
£1.7 million.

Tax

Gurimproving financial performance has
returned us to paying corporation tax,

with a charge for the period of £2.1 miliion.
Perhaps of more significance is our total

tax contribution of £60.7 million, which is
enhanced by our strategy of being, wherever
possible, a direct emplayer.

At the start of the COVID-19 lockdown in
March 20620, the Group took advantage of
tha Govemment offer io defer the payment
of the VAT due in March for twelve months to
safeguard working capital.

Once it became clear in September that we
could operate without this facility, we paic
the balance in full, The support received
separately under the Coronavirus Jab
Retention Scheme (CJRS) is disclosed in
note 4.

Going concern

The Directors have considered the
appropriataness of preparing financial
statements on 2 going concern basis,
and have concluded that this treatment is
appropiiate as they are confident that the
business is a going concern. In making
this assessment, the directors considered
financial projections for the period fo
March 2023, In reaching this conclusion,
the directors considered:

Liquidity: The business has started
2021722 with cash balances of
E21.9 million and no net debt.

The exisience of further cash the
business expects to unlack from specific
confracts which have high receivables
halances, which the directors consider
are collectable.

Credit faciliies: Having generated
significant cash over the past 24 months,
the business is now free of debt, has nat
used its overdraft, or revolving credit
facility in this period, and is not dependent
on renewing thase facilities when they
expire. The Company asked iis bank not to
renew the RCF at the end of October.

The nature of our contracts and customer
base, which provides a relatively
predictable baseline revenue levet

even during the recent lockdowns. In
addition, we are seeing strong demand
for infrastructure investment and expect
to have opportunities to take on additionat
wark in the coming months, both from
existing and new clients.

The law bad debt expasure resutting
from working mainly for regulated
utitity providers.

This Straffgic Report wasfpproved

Director

Date: 17 September 2021

Cianey
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" GOVERNANCE REPORT

Our governance

i

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to introduce the Group's
corpoerate governance report. One of my

key responsibilities is to ensure tha Group
maintains high standards of corporate
governance and to review the corparate
governance structures, including the various
Board committees, to ensure they continue to
be appropriate to the size and complexity of
the Group as the business evclves.

As Chairman, [ Head the Board of Directors
and have primary responsibility to provide the
necessary leadership, input and guidance to
the Company and the Board in restoring the
business to a level of sustainable profitability
that creates long-term shareholder value.

| alsa have responsibility for steering the
Board agenda to ensure it focuses on the
important operational and financial matters.

The current Board has the appropriate blend
of skills, capabilities and experience to deal
with the challenges faced by the business.

industry knowledge, supported by financial
experience, is particularly impaortant for the
Group at this time of continued uncertainty
regarding Brexit and the coronavirus
pandemic and the Board has a depth of
experience in these areas.

The Beard is in turn supported by significant
expertise within our wider leadership team,
including a series of new appointments

and internal promotions to energise our
future strategy.

The Beard has ddopied The Wates Carporate
Governgnca Principles. As a Beard we
believe that by complying with those
principles the Group has an appropriate
level of governance for its current stage of
development, as well as providing a suitable
framewaork in the medium to long term.

The Wates Principles supports the Group's
approach to managing risks and transparent
cammunications with stakeholders. Where
appropriate, this Gorporate goverhance
staterment and report have beén prepared
to Gomiment on the application of The Wates
Principles and to address the disclosure
requirements recommended by i,

Governance Report

tn keeping the corporate governance
structures under review, during the period we
have continued to recegnise the importance
of the Audit and Risk, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees and reviewed the
terms of reference for the Audit and Risk
Committee. We have also reviewed the lisi of
matters specifically reserved for decision by
the fult Board.

Overall, this structure will ensure proper
independent scrutiny and challenge and
suppaort the delivery of the growth strategy.

During the period, the Group's corporate
governance arrangements were unchanged
with the structure and members of the Board
and committees remaining the same.

Kevin Clancy
Chairman

»

Dear Shareholder,

The Board is responsible for ensuring
the highest standards of corporate
governance and for promoting Clancy's
long-term success.

The Board

The roles of the Chairman and Chiaf
Executive Officer are separate with
each having clearly defined dutles and
responsibilities.

The Chairman provides leadership to the
Board. He is responsible for chairing the
Board meetings and for setting the agenda
for the Board meetings (n consuliation with
the Chief Executive Officer} and ensuring
that the Board has sufficient time to discuss
issues on the agenda, especialy those
relating fo strateqy.

The Chairman is also respansible for ensuring
that the Direclors receive all the necessary
information and reparts.

He is also responsibie, alang with the
Chief Exgcutive Officer, for ensuring that
the appropriate standards of corporate
ggvernance are effectively communicated
and adhered ta throughout the business.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for leadership of the Clancy management
and its employees on a day-to-day basis. In
conjuaction with the Operating Board, the
Chief Executive Officer is fespansible for the
implamentation of Board decisions.

Buring the financial period, the compaosition
of the Board has been unchanged. As of

the date of this Annual Report, the Board
camprised the Chairman (Kevin Clancy), two
Executive Directors {(Matthew Cannen and
Nick Blaber) and two Non-Exacutive Directors
(lan Gray and Mary Clancy).

Details of each Director’s background and
axperience can be found on pages 26-27.

The Board's mix of skills and business
experience is important to the Company at
this stage of its development and ensures an
informed review and debate of performance
and strategy. Each Director is responsible for
kaeping their skills up to date and relevant to
being a director of a listed company.

24 } Annual Reportand Accounts 2021 ) Clancy



Role of the Board

The Board meets regularly, and directors are
supplied with a comprehensive Board pack
before all Board meetings, which includes the
agenda, previous minutes, detailed financial
information and all other supporting papers

necessary to have a fully informed discussion.

The Board ensures that the necessary
changes are being effectad and investment is
made to achieve Clancy’s strategic priorities.

Day-to-day operational and financial
management is delegated to Clancy's
Operating Board, which meets monthly.

Operation of the Board

The Board meets regularly and there were 12
scheduled Board meetings during the period.

Any specific actians arising during meetings
agreed by the Board are followed up and
reviewed at subsequent Board meetings

to ensure their completion, The Board also
keeps in close cantact between formal
meetings and will conduct ad hoc meetings
as required. If a director is unable to attend a
Board meeting, the Chairman will canvass his
or her views in advance and ensure that the
director is promptly advised of the outcome of
the matters under discussion.

All directors act in what they consider to be
the best interests of the Company consistent
with their statutory duties.

The business at each scheduled Board
meeting includes regular reports fraom

the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer covering business
performance, markets and competition,
health and safely, as well as progress against
strategic objeciives and capital expenditure
projects. The Board alse cansiders reports
fram functicnal heads from across the group.

Board Committees

The Beard has delegated certain
respeonsibilities to the Audit and Risk
Commitiee, the Remuneration Commitiee,
and the Nomination Commitiea. Cach
Committee operates according to its own
terms of reference.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee has primary
responsibility for monitoring the quality

of internal controls, ensuring that the
financial performance of Clancy is properly
measured, ensuring the integrity of the
financial statements, and reporting and
reviewing reporis from Clancy’s auditor
refating lo Clancy accounting and internal
controls, ir all cases having due regard

to the interests of shareholders. Further
infarmation on the Committee is setoutin the
relevant report on page 28.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines
remuneration for the Executive Directors

and senior managers in the Group. Further
information on the work of the Committee is
set out in the Directors' Remuneration Report
on page 29.

Nomination Committee

The Nemination Cemmittee recommends
the appointment of Directors and Senior
Executives and is responsible for succession
planning. Further information on the work

of the Committee is set out in the Directors’
Nomination Report on page 29.

Internal controls and risk
management

Clancy has in place a system of interral
financial controls commensurate with its
current size and activities.

The Board has overali responsibility

far Clancy's system of internal controt

to safeguard the Group’s assats and
shareholders' interests. The risk management
process and systems of inlernal controls are
designed to Identify the main risks that the
Group faces in delivering its strategy and
growth plan and ensure that appropriate
policies and pracedures are in place to
minimisé these risks ta the Group, including
the establishmen! of appropriate business
continuity planning arrangements. The Group
maintains a sk management register which
is reviewed and discusSed every six months
with theé Operating Board and the Chairman of
the Audit and Risk Committee.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the system of internal control for the period
ended 28 Madrch 2021 and up lo the date

of the signing of the Arsnual Report and
Accounts. The Board will continue to develop
and implement internal control procedures
appropriata ta Clancy's activities and scale.

The Board recognises that an essential part of
its responsibility is the effective safeguarding
of assets, the proper recognition of liabilities
and the accurate reporting of results.

The Group has a comprehensive system

for regular reporting to the Board. This
includes monthly management accounts,
functional reports 2nd an annual planning
and budgeting process. Financial reporting
compares resuits against budget and against
the prior year, and the Board reviews its
forecasts on a regular basis.

The Board has established a formal
policy of authorisation setting out matters
which require its approval, and certain
autharities which are delegated to the
Executive Directors and members of the
Operating Board.

Strategy

A description of the Group's strategy can be
found in the section on strategic objectives on
page 4.

Attendance Board Audit & Risk Remuneration Nomination
mestings Commitee Commitee Commitee Kevin Clancy
Chairman

I Kevin Clancy |E0!20 ” 5/5 H 13/13 “ 575 |
l Matthew Cannon |EO/20 ” ” ” J
[Neaosr || o720 || | I |
@Gray IE?IZO “ 5/5 ” 12713 JLSIS ]

Mary Clancy |E0f20 “ 5/5 ” 12713 || 575 |
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»

Clancy Group Holdings Board

Kevin has warkéd at the business founded
by his father MJ Clancy since 1968,
assuming leadership as joint managing
dire¢lor with his brother Dermot in 1984.
Since then, with Dermaot and Mary,

Kevin has led the company’s growth to
become anié of the largest privately gwned
construction businesses in the UK, Kevin
and Dermot became Joint Chairmen in
2012 until Dermat’s death in fate 2019,
since which Kévin has continued to lead
the business and the company’s Board.

Matt assumed the role of Chief Executive
at Clancy in early 2019 following a

15-year careerin the business founded
by his grandfather Michael. Since then, he
has overseen the gstatlishment of a new
leadership team, and led the creation of
our refreshed vision and strategy.

— —
Kevin Clancy Matt Cannon Nick Blaber
Chairman Chief Executive Officar Chief Financiat Officer

Nick joined Clancy in 2017 after moving
from senior roles within one of the
business’ longstanding clients Thames
Water, Warking with the executive

team as part of the Board, he has been
instrumental in delivering the business’
strategy of financial restlience and
investment for the future.

Mary joined her brathers Dermat and
Keavin in the family business in 1974 and

is a non-executive directer. She also
chairs the Clancy Foundation, established
during the period.

lan was appointed Clancy's first
independerit hon-executive director in
2018 as part of the transition to a new
generation of family ownership. Since then
he has warked with the Board (o establish
the new group structure and sits as chair
of the Audit and Risk, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. Qutside Clancy,
{an is a non-executive director at feading
logistics business DX Group Plc and has
experience advising companies within
distribution, retail and food picduction.

Mary Clancy lan Gray David Pegg
Non-Executive Directar Non-Executive Director Company Secretary

David joined Clancy in 1896 and has
acted as Company Secretary for all
companies within the Group singe 2004,
He also has overall responsibility for
fnsurance, payroll, facilities, security and
corporate governance.

26 3} Annual Reportand Accounts 2621 ) Clancy



Executive directors

Matt Bailey
Executive Director

Mait's 25-year career at Clancy has
seen him progress from operational
roles to overseeing the performance of
a portfalio of water and civil engineering
contracts across the South, His clients
include Thames Water, Southern Waler,
5ES Water and South East Water.

Jim Davey
Executive Director

Jim works alongside Matt Bailey and
oversees the performance of our water,
energy and civil engineering business

in Landon, East Anglia and the Nasth of
£ngland. His pertfolio of clients includes
Anglian Water, UK Power Networks, H52
and Northern Powergrid.

Ronan Clancy
Executive Director

Ranan was appointad to Clancy's
axecutive Board in April 2021 to head
up the business’ focus on new market
oppartunities within water and energy.
The mave aiso supports Clancy's
ongoing transition i a third genesation
of family leadership.

Clancy
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Audit and Risk Committee Report )

Dear Shareholder,

This report provides an overview of how

the Committee operated, an insight into

the Committee's activities and its role

in ensuring the integrity of the Group’s
published financial infarmation and ensuring
the effectiveness of its risk management,
controls and related processes.

Committee structure

The membership of the Committee, which
remained unchanged during the period
under review, comprises threé rion-
executive directors: fan Grdy as Chaifman,
Kevifs Clancy, and Mary Clancy. The
Committee has been selected with the

aim of providing the range of financial and
commercial expertise necessary to meet its
responsibifities. Thi Board is confident that
the collectivé experierice of the Addit and
Risk Commitiee membérs enables them to
act as an effective Cornmitiee.

Meetings

The Committee had five meetings during the
period under review, | report to the Board,
as a separate agenda item, on the activity of
the Committee and matters of relevance and
the Board receives copies of the Commitiee
minutes. Attendance at meetings of the
Commitiee by non-membsers is by invitation
and at the discretion of the Committee. The
Chief Financial Officer and the external
auditor are invited to attend some meetings
of the Audit Committee. The Committee also
regularly meets separately with the Chief
Financial Officer,

Roles and responsibilities

The main duties of the Audit and Risk
Committee are set out in its terms of
reference, which have been agreed
with the Board.

In the period under review Committee
discussions included the following key items:

= Review of 2020 Annual Report and
Accounts

= Financial reporting {including treatmeni of

leases and Making Tax Digital)

Whistleblowing Policy

Anti-Corruption & Bribery policy

Anti-Slavery & Human Trafficking policy

Modern Slavery Statement

Anti-facilitation of Tax Evasion palicy

Health & Safety Policy Statement

Environmant & Sustainability policy

Customer & Quality Policy

Privacy Policy

Treasury Process and Controls

Supplier Payment Tarms

Cyber Security

Review of the Group risk register

Commitiee governance

Health and safety

External audit pian and strategy for 2021

Annual Report and Accounts.

Whistleblowing

The Company's Whistieblowing Folicy,
approved in 2020, encourages and protects
legitimafe whistleblowing. An independent
third-party whistieblowing hélpline, Sectire
web.portal and mobile app, allows employees
to repoft cancerns about individuals who
have acted improperly. All contacis are
treated confidentially and anonymously if
preferred. A small number of matters were
congidéréd by the Committee, none of which
required ary external legat advice.

Non-audit sérvices

In December 2019, the Financial Reporting
Counci! (FRC) published a new independence
standard which governs the work that audit
firms can undertake for companies that they
audit {the ‘Revised Ethical Standard (2619)).
The standard permits the use of a Company’s
audit firm {o only provide a very namrow list of
permitted audit or assurance services.

Consequently, the Commitiee decided last
year to separate the provision of external
audit and annual tax compliance services.

External auditor

To ensure the auditor's independence and
ohjectivity, the Commmittee arnually reviews
the Group's relationship with the auditor.
Fallowing the review in 2020, we concluded
that it has an gbjective and professional
relatignship with RSM UK Audit LLP and
that there are sufficient controls and
processes in place to ensure the required
level of independence. In addition, the
auditor is reguired to review and confirm
its independence to the Audit and Rigk
Comrriittee on a regular basis.

The Company’s policy on auditor rotation is
to ensure that at least once every ten years
the audit services contract is put out to tender
to enable the Audit &nd Risk Comemittee to
compare the quality and effecliveriess of the
services provided by the incumbent auditor
with those of ather audit firms; and in respect
of such tender oversee the sélection grocess
and ensuie that all tendéring firms have

such access as is necessary ta information
and individuals during the duration of the
tendering process.

Audit process

RSM UK Audit LLP prepares an audit plan
which sets out the scope of and approach

to the audil, significant risks and other areas
to be targeted. This plan is reviewed and
agreed in advance by the Audit and Risk
Committee. Following their review, the auditor
presents its findings to the Audit and Risk
Committee for discussion.

lan Gray
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee
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Remunerafion Commifttee Report )

Oear Shareholder,

Qur approach to remuneration aligns

the inlerests of the Executive Directors

and Senior Management Team fo the
shareholders. Qur approachis to attract and
retain the best possible people who have
the capacity and drive to meet the Group's
sirategic: and financial objectives. To attract
and retain this team we offer them a basic
salary and pension contribution that is fair,
reasonable and affordabile for the Group.
They are incentivised to deliver growth

of the business by way of a discretionary
annual bonus scheme, which rewards them
based on achieving targets and longer-term
incentives to create and protect long-term
sharehoider value.

Committee structure

The membership of the Committee, which
remained unchanged during the period,
comprises three non-executive directors:
ian Gray as Chairman, Kevin Clancy, and
Mary Clancy.

Meetings

The Committee had thirteen meetings during
the period under review. The Remuneration
Committee determines the remuneraticn
packages for the Executive Direclors

and senior managers, and any major
remuneration ptans or palicies for the Group.

Nomination

The Committee's rale is to ensure thai the
principles of the Group’s Remuneration Policy
are aligned with the business strategy and
promote fong-term shareholder value.

Roles and responsibilities

The main duties of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of
reterence, which have been agreed

with the Board.

The main items of business considered by the
Remuneration Committee during the period
under review included:

= Review of remuneration strategy and
policy.

» Salary and annual bonus for Executive
Directors and other senior managers.

= Awards {0 senior managers under the
Long Term Incentive Plan.

Executive Directors’ service confracts
and termination policy

Executive Directors hold a service agreement
with an indefinite term and a fixed maximum
termination period of 12 months for the Chief
Executive Officer, and six months far the Chief
Financial Officer. Any payments in respact of
termination reflect base salary only and do
not include an annual bonus.

Committee

The Groug's policy on the setting of notice
periods under the Exacutive Directors’
service agreements is in line with external
market trends and is reviewed by role

to protect the Group’s knowledge and
operations. Only the Remuneration
Committee can authorise executive
termination payments.

Each of the Executive Directors is eligible fo
participate in a discretionary annual bonus
scheme, should one be put in place for any
given period. Any bonus payments are at the
discretion of the Board and subject 1o such
conditions, including Profit After Tax, as the
Board may determine.

Pay for all other employees is based upon
extemnal market rates, job role, internal
comparators and business impact.

Both Glancy's financial and operational
performance and each person's personal
performance are also considered when
setting salaries.

lan Gray
On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

Report )

Dear Shareholder,

Tnis report provides an overview of how the
Committes operated and an insight into the
Committee’s activities. The Committee is
responsible for reviewing the composition
of the Boards and the Senior Leadership
Team. It also considers successien planning
and training.

Committee structure

The membership of the Committee,

which remained unchanged during the
period under review, comprises three
non-execulive directors: tan Gray as
Chairman, Kevin Clancy, and Mary Clancy.

Meetings

The Cormmittee had five meetings during
the period under review. Attendance

at meetings of the Commitiee by
nen-members is by invitation and at the
discretion of the Committee,

Roles and responsibilities

The main duties of the Nomination
Compmittee are set outin its terms of
reference, which have been agreed with the
Board. We monitor and regularly review the
structure, size, and compasition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity) of the Senior Leadership Team and
make recommendations for changes. We
consider succession planning for Directors
and other Senior Executives and the skilis
and expertise needed in the fulure.

In the periad under review the Committee
discussions included the following key items:

= Group Organisation Structure
Spans and Layers
Approval of new roles, such as Strategy
and Business Development Director,
Systerns Transformation Director;
Heads of Treasury and Financial Planning
and Analysis.

jan Gray
On behaif of the Nomination Committee

Clancy
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S172 Statement

»

Statement of directors’ duties to stakeholders

In accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors
report that they have discharged their responsibilities in the following areas:

Long term consequences of actions

As a family-owned business operating mainly
under long-term contracts, and even longer-
term relationships, Clancy Group Holdings

is run in the interests of long-term resilience
and success.

The directors always consider the possible
long-term censequences of any proposed
course of action, including safety and
financial impacts and reputation with ail
stakeholders, The directors believe strongly
that the long-term relationship that we
have with the majarity of aur ¢lients, and
the experience of much of the leadership
team, enabled the business to survive the
unpiscedentad COVID-19 lockdown in
good shape.

The interests of the company’s
employees

Clancy takes a long-terr approach to
employment, with many long-serving
employees and emplayees from
the sare family.

2020-21 was an exceptional year and it
tested our employees in many new ways.
We have been delighted by the positive way
in which our team has responded to the
challenges, and the Jeve! of engagement
they have demonstrated.

In the second half of the period under review
we have made two key interventions, both

of which have received vary favourable
feedback from the workforce:

= Aseries of live presentations by the
axecutive team and senior managers, via
Zouom, to the entire workforce to introduce
our revised vision and strategy and what
it would mean for them. We surveyed
attendees afterwards and were delighted
with the approval level.

= Launching the Celebrating Clancy
awards thraughout thé business, lo give
recoghition fo those demonstrating the
behaviours and values expected. Each
business area nominates and chouses its
winners, who then progress to a Graup
stage where overall winners are chosen.
We have seen a very good respanse to
this initiafive alsa.

Both initiatfves have necessarily been
carried out remotely. The Board is hopeft
that we will be able to hold the Group
Celebrating Clancy awards live at our
headguarters during the autumn of 2021
and return fo being visible mare frequently
in person around the busiriess.

Relationships with suppliers
and customers

The Graup specialises in working with
regulated utilities, where contracts
typically tun for at least five years and
refationships often far longer. The Group
enjoys constructive relationships with its
customers basad largely on the values that,
althcugh only recently written down, have
leng been part of who we are. We aim to
have multiple points of contact with each
client to ensure that we remain aligned with
their expectatjons. Qur independence as

a business aflows us fo prioritise senicr
relationship-building, making $ure that

we are accessibie, and committed fo doing
what we say.

Qur supplier base is wide and includes
frameworks negotiated by our clients as

well as ourselves. As with our customers,
many relationships are long-standing, and
we recognise the importance of our supply
chain to the success of the business.

We aim to treat all suppliers equally,

and most importantly to pay them in line

with contractual terms. In this respect,

our published Payment Practices and
Perfarmance reports show that far the six
months toc September 2020, the average time
to pay suppliers from uneelated companies
felf further to 41 days and that 83% were paid
within terms.

Impact on the community
and the environment

Cammunity impact is of increasing
importance to our utility clients, and we would
not be successful in this area if wae were not
contributing positively to their performance.
We continue to focus on:

= Providing exemplary levels of service
to our clients' customers and the wider
community

= Minimising the impact of our works
(which can by their nature be inherently
disruptive)

= Providing the operational response to
keep our clients' customers in supply at
any time and in any conditions

= Reducing the number of envircnmental
incidents.

In addition, we launched the Clancy
Charitabte Foundation, with the aim of
investing more directly'in the communities
whiere we operate,

Cur strategy has environmental impact at
the heart, and we are investing héavily in
technigues and technalogies that will reduce
the amount of waste in our operations - from
spoil sent ta landfill to the carbon impact of
unnecessary joumneys. We have started the
journey towards our stated aim of reducing
carbon dioxide emissions by 50% by 2025,

Business conduct

As outlined in the statements above, the
shareholders and directors of Clancy Group
Haldings place a high value on the reputation
of the business —~ which is primarily influenced
by the caonduct of its officers.

This is best summed up by the value ‘we
do what we say', and this ts the standard
that the directors apply to themselves and
to others in the organisation to judge what
is appropriate. Within contracting. there will
always be a tension over how contracts are
waon, interpreted and applied, and the tight
margins of the sector mean that we need ta
be commercially rabust. Howaver, we believe
that the length of our client (and supptier)
refationships best demonstrates that we
usually strike the right balance,
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Acting fairly between members

The shareholders of Clancy Group Holdings
are all members of the Clancy family, but
nave differing levels of involvement in the
running of the business. To ensure fair and
equal treatment, the following mechanisms
are in ptace:

= A Shareholders Agreement for Clancy
Group Holdings has recently been
established, along with the new
Memarandum and Articles

» Adesignated Family NED sits on the
Board, and is the independent conduit for
family questions or concerns

= The Annual General Meeting includes an
update from the directors to memiers or
their representatives on the performance
and plans of the business, and allows
them to question management

s A Family Assembly takes place annually,
attended by all family members
{shareholders or not} and the Board. This
meeting receives a presentation from
management an company performance,
and again invites gquestions.

The Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiees, composed of two family

and one independent NED, adjudicates

any appointments and amendments of
terms for Family members who are employed
in the Group.

Principal risks

The business operates in a contracting
environment that carries certain inherent
risks, and global events over the recent
pericd have been a reminder that not ali risks
can he predicted. The Company however
maintains a register of known tikely risks and
reviews its responses periodically to ensure
that it is operating within its risk appetite.

This process is overseen twice annually by
the Audit and Risk Committee.

The Directors considered the principal risks
facing the business at March 2021 were:

Safety

The Group's activities by their nature can

hé hazardous and the Group continuously
monitors its health, safety and environmental
perfermance through regular audits and
data analytics. Failure to manage these risks
adequately would expose the group to both
reputational damage and financiat iability.

Al all board, executive and operational
meetings, health and safety is the first ftem
on the agenda. The board focuses on our
safety culture, with zero tolerance of unsafe
behaviour, and ensuring that our warkforce is
trained to undertake our work safely.

Contractrisk

The Graup has both long-term and short-
term contracts which expose the group to a
range of risks. Failure to manage these could
expose the business to financial foss or
reputational damage.

The Group's largest client group is the
reguiated water sector, which works

fo five-year business plans definad by
regulatgry price Gonirols and typically aligns
its contracting arrarigeniefits with these
periods. We riaintain a long forward order
boak, with the majority of our work secured
for lhe next five years, although those term
coniracts typically have no guaranteed
revenue leveéls. The length of the contracts
allows us to develop mature client and
contractor relationships. This allows us o
deal with contractual issues as they arise,
and this was amply demonstrated by the
collaborative approach we achieved with
many of our clienis through the lackdowns
in the finaricial yéar.

Contracts in progress are reviewed
cumuiatively and end life forecasts
maintained to identify potential overruns
or losses. Where identified, any projected
loss is recognised in full,

Pecple

The Group depends on its exscutive team,
management and its highly skilled and
motivated warkforce. We operate inan
environment where rising investment in
infrastructure is creating an increasingly
competitive markel for talent. The Group
measures staff turnover and reviews ways
to retain and attract talent. We continue

to develop and promaote talented people
within the organisation, as weli as sourcing
skills externally.

Cyber

All sectors are experiencing a sharp increase
in cybar altacks. Our business has invested
considerable effort in a response plan, with
an emphasis on awarenass and training
along with strengthening our IT defences,
and we will continue to monitor and respond
to changing threats.

Process compliance

Failure to comply with documented process
can lead to several unwanted outcomes,
including injury, financial loss and loss of
accreditation. The campany is increasing
its investment in systems, processes, and
training to ensure that the risk of lack of
process awareness is minimised. This is
being batked up by a systemn of audit to
provide assurance that processes are being
followed, and lo highlight areas where we
need ta do batter.

Pandemic

The period to March 2021 displayed a
unique set of circumstances that could
hardly have been fareseen. We have heen
pleased overall by how the arganisation has
been able {o respond to the challenges, but
there is no room for complacency, and we
are aware of the need to remain vigilant and
to continue to challenge our ways of working
to ensure they remain as safe as can be
practically achieved.

During the period under review, clients have
suspended contracts or workstreams for
different specific COVID-related reasons and
we used the furlough schéme to protect jebs
unitit the work could recommence. Future
lockdowns with na furlough support could
pase a significant threat to the business and
could force unwanted redundancies which
wolld be detrimental to all interests.

Clancy 3} AnnuatReportand Accounts 2021
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors' Report

)

The directors present their annual report and financial
statements for the 52-week period ended 28 March 2021.

In June 2020, Clancy Group Holdings Ltd
{'CGH') acquired the entire share capital
The Clancy Group Lid for 100,000 shaes
in CGH, in a 1:1 share exchange. 1t
subsequently acquired the entire share
capital of Clancy Plant Limited {"CPL)) for
30,000 shares in CGH.

In March 2020, Clancy Group Haldings Ltd
issued 10,400,000 preference shares of £1

to the shareholders, taking the form of a non-
cash distribution. The shares accrue a fixed
preferential dividend of 3%, payable annually
on 31 March.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the company and
group during the financial year were civil
engineering, construction, utifities contracting
and residential development.

Directors

The direciors who held office during the
52-weekK period and up to the dale of signature
of the financiaf statements wers

as follows:

N J Blaber {appointed 30 June 202Q)
M S Cannon {appointed 30 June 2020}
KT Clancy

M P Clancy {appointed 30 June 2020)
| A Gray {appointed 30 June 2020)
D Pegd {company secretary)
Reésults and dividends

The results for the 52 week periad are set out
on page 38. Further commentary is provided
in the Strategic Report on pages 8-21.

Ordinary dividends of £612,000 were paid in
the peried. The directors do not recommend
payment of a further dividend.

Qualifying third party indemnity
provisions

The Group has made qualifying third party
indemnity provisions for the benefit of the
directors of all entities in the Group during the
52 week period. These provisions remain in
force at the reporting date.

Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial instruments
camprise mainly of short term borrowing
facilities, other than hire purchase and leasing
fiabilities which are due after one year.

The Group also has a facility whereby it
can draw down payment of sales invoices
early from one customer, sea note 22

for further details. The main purpose of
these instruments is to finance the group's
operations.

Credit and cash flow risk from trade
receivables and amounts recoverable on
contracts are managed through policies on
payment terms, and regular reviews of the
batance and age of amounts outstanding.

Liguidity risk in respect of trade payables is
managed by ensusing sufficient funds are
available to meet amounts falling due.

Company information

N

Diractors Secrotary

N J Blaber D Pegg

M S Cannon

KT Clancy Company number
MP Clancy 12500720

| A Gray

Registered office Auditor Bankers
Clare House RSM UK Audit LLP Alliad lrish Bank
Coppermill Lane Chartered Accountants Ealing Cross
Harefiald 3rd Floor, Partland 85 Uxbridge Road
Uxbridge 25 High Street London
Middlesex Crawley W5 5TH
U89 6HZ Woest Sussex

RH10 1BG
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Disabled persons

The company gives every consideration

to applications for employment fram
disabled persons where the reguirements
of the job may be adaquately fulfilled

by a disabled perscn. Where existing
employees become disabled it is the Group's
pelicy, wherever practicable, to provide
continuing employment under normal terms
and cenditions and to provide training,
career development and premotion where
appropriate.

Strategic Report

The Comgpany has chosen in accordance
with Companies Act 2008, s. 414C(11} to
sel out in the company's Strategic Report
information required by Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008, Sch. 7 to
be contained in the Directors' Report. It has
done so in respect of principle risks and
uncertainties.

Post reporting date events

No material events have taken place since
balance sheet date, and the business has
continued to trade in line with expectations.

Future developments

The healthy financial position of the business
{eaves the Board able to focus on the future,

and the direction is best summarised by the

Strategic Priorities set out on page 4.

Auditor

In accordance with the Company's articles,

a resolution proposing that RSM UK Audit LLP
be reappointed as auditor of the Group will be
put at a General Meeling.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person whe was a director

at the date of approving this report is aware,
there is ne relevant audit information of

which the company’s auditor is unaware.
Additionally, each director has taken all the
necessary steps that they ought 1o have taken
as a director in order to make themselves
aware of all relevai! audilinfurmation and to
establish that the company’s auditor is aware
of that information.

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsibie for preparing
the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report
and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to
prepare financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards

and applicable law). Under company law

the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the group and company, and of the profit or
loss of the group for that period. in preparing
these financial statements, the directors are
required to:

= select suitable accounting puticies
and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting
astimales that are reasonable
and prudent;

= state whether applicable UK Accounting

Standards have been followed, subject to

any material, departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

= prepare the financial statements on
the going concérn basis unless itis
inappropriate to presume that the Group
and Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to shoiv and éxplain the Group's
and Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and company
and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies

Act 2006. They are alsd responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and
Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the pravention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the board

K TCrancy
Director

Dete; 17 September 2021 .

Clancy
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GCONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Audiftor's Report

),

Independent auditor's report to the members of Clancy Group Holdings Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements

of Clangy Graup Holdings Limited {the
‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the
‘group'} for the period ended 28 March

2021 which comprise the Consalidated
Statsment of Comprehensive Income, the
Consalidated Statement of Financial Position,
the Company Statement of Financial Posjtion,
the Consclidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Comparny Statement of Changes
in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Elows and notes to the financial statements,
including significant accounting policies, The
financial reporting framewark that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable Jaw
and United Kirgdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of iretand” {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Ifi dur opinion, the financial statements:

= give a true end fair view of the state of
the Group's and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 28 March 2021 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in
accerdance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

= have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance

with International Standards on Auditing
{UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards

are further described in the Auditor's
responsibiities for the audit of the financial
statements section gf our report. We are
independent of the group and parent
company in accordancé with the ethical
requirements that are reievant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have
abtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis.for aur opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concemn

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the
going concerh basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial stalerments is
appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’
assessment of the group's and parent
company's ability o conitinue 10 adopt the
guing cencefn basis-of accounting included
a raview of management’s forecasts used

in their assessment of the group as a going
concern including underlying assumptions.
Sensitivity analysis was performed on

these forecasts to the extent necessary

to ascértain the impact variations may

have on performance and subsequently

the going concern status of the group and
parent comparty.

Based on the work we have performed,

wé havé not ideniified any material
uncertainties relating to evenis or conditions
that, individually or collectively, hay cast
significant doubt-on the group's 6r the parent
company's ability to céntinue as a gaing
concern for a period of at léast twelve months
from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities arid the résponsibilities
of the diréctors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of

this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our
Auditor's Report thereon. The directors

are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the

extent otherwise expiicitly stated in our report,

we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therean.

Qur responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing s0, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

if we identify such material inconsistencies

or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives

rise 10 a material misstatement in the

financial staternents themselves, If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this
ather information, we are required 1o report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

QOpinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinian, based on the work undertaken
in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the Strategic
Repart and the Directors’ Repart for
the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and

= the Strategic Report and the Directors'
Report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their environment obtained in
the caurse of the audit, we have not identified
raterial misstatements in the Strategic Report
or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in refation to which the
Comparies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in cur opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for eur audit have not
been received from branches not visited
by us; or

= the parent company financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors’
remuneralion specified by law are not
made; or

« we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit.

16 )} Annual Repart and Accounts 2029 3 Clancy



Responsibilities of directors

As explained mare fully in the directors’
responsibilities statement set out on page
35, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statesments and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatementi, whether
due ta fraud or eirar.

In prepraring the financial statements, the
directars are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company's abflity

to continue #@s a gbing concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the-going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either
intend fo liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cedse Gpérations, or have
no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial stateménts

Our objectives are to gbtain reasonable
assurance about whather the financial
statements as 8 whole are free from malerizl
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and td issue an auditor's repart that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assuranice is a high
lavel of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance

with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or

in fhe aggregate, théy could reasondbly

be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken an the basis of
these financial statemenits.

The extent to which the audit was
considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irreguiarities ara ingtances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The objectives of
our audit are to-obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
taws and regulations that have a diréct effect
on the determination of material amounts
and disclosuras iri the financial statements,
ta pérfarm audit procedures to help identify
irsténes of non-compliance with other laws
and regulations that may have a material
effect on the financial statemenis, and

to respond appropriately to identified or
suspacted non-compliance with laws and
regutations identifiad during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our
audit are fo identify and assess the risk

of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement due
to fraud through designing and implementing
appropriate responsas and o respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud
identified during the audit,

However, it is the primary responsibility of
management, with the oversight of those
charged with governance, to ensure that
the entity's operations are conducted in
accordance with the provisions of laws
and regulations and for the prevention and
deteclion of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of
material misstatement in respect of
irregutarities, including fraud, the group
audit engagement team:

= obtained an understanding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and regulatory frameworks that the
group and parent company operate in
and how the group and parent company
are complying with the legal and
reguiatory frameworks;

» inquired of management, and those
charged with govemance, about their
awn identification and assessment of
the risks of irequiarities, including any
known actual, suspecled or alleged
instances of fraud;

» discussed matters about non-compliance
with laws and regulations and how fraud
might occur including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may
be susceptible to fraud.

As a result of these procedures we consider
the most significant laws and regulations

that have a direct impact on the financial
statements are: United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (FRS 102);

the Companies Act 2006; tax compliance
legislation; and the Coronavirus Job Retenlion
Scheme (CJIRS) legislation. We perfermed
audit procedures to detect non-compliances
which may have a material impact on the

The group audit engagement teamn identified
the risk of management override of conirofs
and the risk of revenue recognition as the
areas where the financial staterfents were
most susceptible to material misstatement
due to fraud. Audit pracedures parformed
inciuded, but were not [imited o, testing
manual journal entries and other adjustments
and evaluating the business rationale in
relation to significant or unusual transactions,
transactions entered into outside the normal
course of business, considering the stage of
completion of contracts, agreeing contract
revenue to tender values and variabions,
reviewing expected co5ts compared to
forecasts and reviéwing post year end results
for potential cut off issues.

A further description of our responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statemients

is located on theé Findncial Reporting
Coauncil's websile at: ;

Dtpfwwy frg.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilifies This description forms
part of our Auditor’s Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work hds been undsrtaken
sothat we might state to the campany’s
inembers those matters we are required

to state to them in an auditor's repért and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume fesponsibility to-anyone other than
the comipany and the cormpany's members as
a body. for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions wé have formed.

CSM Uk Audat LLP

William Farren FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Porttand, 25 High Street
rawley
West Sussex
RH10 1BG

financial statements which Included reviewing 2 1September 2021

financial statement disclosures, inspecting
caorrespondence with local tax authorities
and reviewing management's process for
administering and calculating CJURS claims.

The most significant laws and regulations
that have an indirect impact on the financiat
statements are those in relation to health and
safaty. We perfarmed audit procedures to
inquire of managerent and those charged
with gevernance whether the group is in
compliance with these law and regulations
and inspected correspandence with
reguialory authorities,
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| CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

Consolidated financial statements))

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the perlod ended 28 March 2021

Continuing Discontinued Perlod ended Continuing Discontinued Pertod ended
operations operations 28 March 2021 operations operations 29 March 2020
NOTES £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Revenug 3 249,462 5754 255,216 274,744 20,900 295,644
Cost of saies (223,217) (7.529) (230,746) (247,643) (26,434} (274.077)
Gross profit/{loss) 26,245 {1,775) 24,470 27,101 {5,534) 21,567
Administrative expenses (17,170) - (17,170} {18,145) - {18,145)
Cther gperating income 4 4,237 - 4,237 79 - 791
Operating profit/loss) 7 13,312 (1.775) 11,537 9,747 {5.534) 4,213
Investment income g 24 - 24 29 . 29
Finance ¢osts 10 {493) - {493) (707) . (707)
Qther losses 11 - - R {5) R (5)
Profiti{loss) before 12,843 (1.775) 11,068 o 9,054 (5.534) 3,530
taxation
Tax on piofitloss 12 (2.432) 337 (2.095) 1,104) 1,051 (53)
Profiti{lossyfor the 10,411 (1.438) 8,973 7,980 {4,483) 3477
financial period
Other comprehensive Income
net of taxation
Actuarial 10ss on defined benefit
pensian scheme {480) (262)
Tax refating to other comprehensive income 91 45
Total comprehensive income 8,584 3,260

for the financial period

Profit and total comprahensive incomz for the financial pariod is all atiributable to the owners of the Group. More infarmation on the discontinued
operations can be found in note 13
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 26 March 202t

Nonh-currant assets
Intangitle assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments

Gurrent assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables - deferrad tax
Trade and other receivables - other

Cash and cash equivalents

Currant liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabllitles

Net assets excluding pension liabilities
Defined benefit pension liabllity

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Merger reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to the awners
of the Group

NOTES

16

18

21
22
22

23

24

28

29
30
30

28 March 2% March
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
49,027 40,432
5 113
49,032 40,545
9,678 13555
1,334 14984
42,630 47,174
21,935 21,857
15,577 84,570
(66,614) (70.202)
8,963 14,278
57,995 54,823
(16,854) (9.457)
41,101 45,366
(1.718) {(3,555)
39,383 41,81
130 130
9,373 9,373
29,880 32,308
39,383 41,811

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on

17 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

* ittt

M3 g‘:mon T Clancy
Dire€tor Diractor

Clancy
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company statement of financial position

As at 28 March 2021

2021
NOTES £000
Non-current assets
Propecly, plant and equipment 17 10,511
Investments 18 130
10,641
Current assets
Trade and ciher receivables 22 15,255
Current labllities 23 {10,159}
Net current assels 5,096
Total assets less current liabllities 15,737
Non-current liabilities 24 (10,614}
Net assets 5,123
Equity
Called up share capital 28 130
Retained earnings 30 4,933
Total equity attributable {o the owners
of the Gompany 5123

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2008, the Company has not presented its
own income statement and related noles as it prepares group financial statements,
The Company's profit and total comprehensive income for the financial period was
£16,005,000.

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for

issue on 17 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

lancy
Director Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the period ended 28 March 2021

Share Merger Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
NOTES £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bafance at 31 March 2013 130 9,373 29,248 38,751
Period ended 29 March 2020:
Profit for the financial period - 3477 3477
Other comprehensive income net of tax: '
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans - (262) (262)
Tax relating to other comprehensive income - 45 45
Total cormprehensive income for the financial
period attributable to the owners of the Group - - 3,260 3,260
Dividends 14 - - (200) (200}
Balance at 29 March 2020 130 9,373 32,308 41,811
Pariod ended 28 March 2021:
Profit for the financial period - - 8,973 8973
Other comprehensive income net of tax: '
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans - {480) (480
Tax relating to other comprehensive income - - a1 91
Total comprehensive income for the financial
period attributable to the owners of the Group - - 8,584 B 584
Dividends 14 - - (612) (612)
MNon cash distripution ~ issue of preference shares 14 - - (10,400) {10,400)
Balance at 28 March 2021 130 9,373 29,880 35,383
Clarcy ) Annual Reportand Accounts 2021 ) 4



Company statement of changes in equity

For the period ended 28 March 2021

_GONSOLEDA'I_'ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share Retained
capital earnings Total

NOTES £7000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 5 March 2020 - -
Period ended 28 March 2021:
Profit for the financial period - 16,005 16,005
Total comprehensive Income for the financiat
pericd attributable to the owners of the Company - 16,005 18,005
Dividends 14 - (612) (612)
Non cash distribution — issue of preference
shares 14 - {10,400} {10,400}
issue of shares 130 - 130
Balance at 28 March 2021 130 4,993 5123
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the period ended 28 March 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

fncome taxes (paid)/refunded

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Inlerest received

Dividends received

Net cash (used inyigenerated from investing activities

Financing activities

Issue of preference shares
Repayment of preference shares
Repayment of bank loans

Payment of finance lease obligations
Dividends paid io equity shareholders

Net cash usead in financing activities

Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Relating to:
Cash at bank and in hand

NOTES

31

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
3,533 20,338
{418) (625)
(520) 398
22,507 20,109
(18,743) (1,735)
3733 3,544
23 27

1 2
(14,986) 1.838
- 1,272
(1,058) .
(2,250) (750
(3.613) (6.116)
612 (260)
(7.533) (5.794)
78 16,153
21,857 5,704
21,935 21,857
21.935 21,857
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~ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements

For the period ended 28 March 2021

1. Accounting policles

Company Information

Clancy Group Haldings Limited (“the
Company") is a private company limited by
shares and is registered and incorporated
in England and Wales. The registered office
is Clare House, Coppermill Lane, Harefield,
Uxbridge, Middlesex. U89 6HZ.

The Group consists of Clancy Group Holdings
Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

The Company's and the Group's principal
activities and nature af its operations are
disélosed in the Directors’ Report.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been
prepared in acedrdance with FRS 102 "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of irefand” ("FRS 102")
and the requirements of the Companies Act
2008, including the provisions of the Large
and Medium-sized Caripariies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008,

The financial statements are prepared in
Sterling, which is the functional currency of
the Company and Group. Monetary amounts
in thesa financial staterments are rounded to
the nearest £1,600.

The financial statements have been prepared
under tha historical cost convention, The
prificipal accounting policies adopled are set
out below.

Reduced disclosures

The Company is a qualifying entity for the
purposas of FRS 102, being a member

of a gréup where the parent of that group
prepares publicly available consalidatad
financial statements, including this company,
which are infended to give a true and fair view
of the assels, liabilitiés, financial position and
profit or loss of the Group. The Company has
therefore taken advantage of the exemptions
from the foilowing dlisclosure requirgments for
parent company information présented within
the consolidated financial statemients:

« Section 4 ‘Statement of Financial Position®
- Reconciliation of the opening and
closing number of shares;

« Saction 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' -
Presentation of a staterment of cash flow
and related notes and disclosures;

« Section 1 'Basic Financial Instruments’
and Section 12 'Other Financial
Instrument {ssues': Interest incomea/
expense and nel gains/losses for financial
instruments not measured at fair value,
hasis of determining fair values; details
of collateral, ioan defaults or breaches,
details of hedges, hedging fair value
changes recognised in profit or loss and in
other comprehensive income; and

» Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’
- Cornpensation for key management
personnel,

Company statement of comprehensive
income

As permitted by Sectian 408 Companies Act
20086, the Company has not présented its
own statement of Comprehensive Income

as it prepares group accounts and the
consolidated Statement of Financial Position
shows the Company's profit or loss for the
financial period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorperate those of Clancy Group Holdings
Limited and al! of its subsidiaries (i.e. entilies
that the Group conlzals through its power to
govern the financial and operating poficies so
as to obtain economic benefits).

In Jupe 2020, the Group undertook 2
corporale re-grganisation in order to
rationalise the group structure.

A% part of this re-organisation, on 17 Jure, the
Company acquired the entire share capital of
The Glancy Group Ltd by way of a share for

‘share exchangs transactién. This acquisition

met the conditions to qualify for the use of the
riferger accounting methadology set out in
Section 19 of FRS 102, and the directors have
accordingly applied this approach. )

To complete the re-organisation, on 30 June
2020, the Company acquired Clancy Plant
Limited. Both combining companies weré
whally-owned by the Clancy family; thefe
was no substantive change 10 their refative
rights as a fesult of the business combination
and no payment of fair valua consideration
was made, therefore the transaction has
been regarded by the directors as a gioup
reconsfruction in substance, and the merger
accounting méthodokogy set out in Section 19
of FRS 102 has been applied.

All intra-group lransactions, batances
and unrealised gaks on transactions
between group companiés are eliminated
on consolidation, Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset {ransferred.

In relation to joint arrangements, the Group
accounts directly for its share of the assets,
liabjilities and cash flows arising from those
joint arrangements in accordance with FRS
102 Section 15.

Business combinations

The cost of a business combination is the

fair value at the acquisition date of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed, plus costs directly
attiibutable to the business combination.

The excess of the cost of a business
combination over the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilites and contingent
liabilities acguired is recognised as goodwill.

The cost of the combination includes the
estimated amount of confingeni consideration
that is probable and can be measured
refiably and is adjusted for changes in
contingent consideration after the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration is discounted,
if material.

Pravisional fair values recognised for
business combinations in previous periods
are adjusted retrospeciively for finat fair
valugs determined in the 12 months following
the acquisition date.

The merger méthad of accounting is applied
to graup reconstruttions as if the entities

has always been combined. The tota)
comprehensive income, assets and fiabilities
of the entities are amerided, where riécessary
to align the accounting policies. Thé carrying
values of the ehtities' assets and liabilities
are nat adjusted to fair value. Any difference
between the nominal value of shares issued
plus the fair value of othér corisideration and
the Aemiral value of shares received is taken
to other reserves in equity.

Going concarn

The directors have considered the
appropriateness of preparing financial
statements on a going concern basis,

and have concluded that this treatment is
appropriate as they are confident that the
business is a going cancemn. In reaching this
conclusian, the directors considered:

» Liguidity. The business started the
2021/22 financial year with cash balances
in excess of £21m and no net debt.

= The existence of further cash the business
expects to unlock from specific contracts
which have high receivables balances,
which the direciors consider
are collectable.

= The credit facilities that we operate.
Having generated significant cash over the
past two financial years, the business is
now free of debt, has not used its overdraft
or revolving credit facility for the majarity
of the previous financial year or at all in the
mast recent year, and is not dependent on
renewing these facilities when they expire.
The Company asked ifs bank, AIB, not to
renew the RCF at the end of October as it
was no longer needed.
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» The nature af our contracts and customer
base, which provides arelatively
predictable baseload revenue level
even during the recent lockdowns. In
addition, we are seging sirong demand
for infrastructure investment and expect
o have opportunities to take o additional
work in the coming months, both from
existing and new clients.

« |he low bad debt exposure resulting
from working mainly for regulated
utility providers.

The directors have considered these

factors, the likely performance of the business
and possible altemative outcomes, the
financing facilities available ta the Company
and Group and the possible actions able to
be taken shoutd new facilities not be available
in the future.

Having taken alf of these factors into account,
at the time of approving the financial
statements, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and Group
have adequale resources 1o continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Therefore the directors continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the financial statements.

Reporting period

The Company was incorporated on & March
2020. The Company financial statements have
been prepared from the date of incarporation
ta 28 March 2621.

The reporting period of alt the subsidiary
undertakings of the Group Is for the 52 week
peried from 30 March 2020 to 28 March 2621,
The previous financiai pericd was for the 52
week period from 1 April to 29 March 2020.

As explained in note 20, these financial
statements have been prepared undar
merger accounting and the Group financial
statements have been presented as if the
Company and the subsidiary undertakings
had always been combined.

Revenue

i) Civit engineering and ulilities coniracting
Revenue represents the value of work done
during the financial period net of value
added tax. The value of work done is
calculated as the certified work, pius the
amount anticipated to be certified, adjusted
for over and under measure. Where
appropriate to the nalure of the contract,
revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion, where
it can be reliably measured.

ii) Residential development

Revenue from residential development
represents the amounts receivable from the
sale of properties and other income directly
associated with property development.

Properties are treated as sold at the paoint
cantrol of the unit is passed o the customer,
which has been determined as the point of
legal completion.

ifi) Hire of plant

Revenue from hire of plant is recognised on
an accruals basis over the hire period, when
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the entity and the costs incurred or ta
be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably,

iv} The service of fraffic management
Revenue from traffic management is
racognised when the cutcome of the
transaction can be recognised reliably, on
completion of each project undertaken.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially
measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost or valuation of assets less their
residual values over their useful lives on the
following bases:

Freshold land
and buildings

not depreciated

Leasehold land
and buildings

not depreciated

16.67% - 50%
on cost

Furniture, fitlings, plant
and equipment

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of

an asset is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the sarrying
value of the asset, and is credited or charged
to profit or loss,

The Group maintains its teasehold properties
in such a state of repair that in the apinion of
the directors their residual values at the dale
of atquisition and subsequent improvements
will always be at least equat to their carrying
values at such dates. Any depreciation
wauld be immaterial and consequently no
depreciation is provided on such property.

The Gréup's freehold buildings are non-
specialised and in view of the Group's policy
on the maintenance of this property, the
directors do not expect its residual value

to fall betow its carrying value in the
toreseeable future.

Non-current investments

Equity investments are maasured at fair value
through profit or loss, except for those equity
investments that are not publicly traded

and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
measured reliably, which are recognised

al cost less impairment until a realisable
measure of fair value becomes availabla.

in the parent Company financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries and jointy
controlled entities are initially measured at
cost and subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairmant tosses. The
invastrments are assessed for impairment

at each reporting date and any impairment
losses or reversals of impairment losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an entity controlied by the
Group. Control is the power to govern the
financial and operating palicies of the entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities,

Entities in which the Group has a long-
term interest and shares control under a
contractual arrangement are classified as
jointly conirolled entities,

Impairment of non-current assets

Al each reporting period end date, the
Group reviews the carfying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss,

If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of the investments
accounted for using the equity method is
tested for impairment as a single asset.
Any goodwitl included in the carrying
amount of the investment is not testad
separately for impairment.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and vatue in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or
cash-generating unit) is éstimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amaunt, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Clancy
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Notes to the financial statements (confinued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

- CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and estimated selling price less costs

to complete and sell. Inventory items are
held for consumption in the process of
delivaring construction cantracts. At each
reporting date, an assessment is made for
impairment, any impairment provisions made
or reversed are recognised in the profit or
loss at that time.

Costis arrivéd at on the following bases:

i} Estale development

Work in progress compriges the cost of
development land, which represents the
acquisition costs of that land including
incidental expenses, and the cost of work

in progress which represents the costs

of direct materials, labour, plant hire and

the averheads relating to each contract in
progress, Provisiont is mads for losses, In full,
on all projects in the financial period in which
they are first foresgen.

if) Raw malerials and consumables

Cost of raw materials is determined on the
first in first out basis. Net realisable value is
the price at which the stock can be realised in
the normal course of business.

fi) Bulk fuels and spare parts

Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and
those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
Jocation and condition.

At each reporting date, an assessmentis
made for impalrment. Any excess of the
carrying amount of inventoties over its
estimated solling price less costs to complete
and sell is recogniséd as an impairment loss
in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment
losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Utility and related confracts

Where the outcome of a utility and related
contract can be estimated raliably, revenue
and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract aclivity

at the reporting end date. Variations in
contract work, claims anid incentive payments
are included to the extent that the amount
can be measured refiably and its receipt is
considered probable.

When it is probable that total coniract
costs will exceed total contract turnover,
the expected loss is racognised as an
expeanse immediately and a provision for
losses on contracts is recognised as a
component of creditors.

Where the guicome of a utility and related
contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recagnised 10 the extent
of contract costs incurred where it is probable
that they will be recoverable. Contract

casts are recagnised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred. When
costs incurred in securing a contract are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred, they are not included
in contract costs if the contract is obtained in
a subsequent period.

The value of work done is calculated

as the certified work, plus the amount
anticipated to be certified, allowing for

over and under measure. This is théen used
{o determine the appropriate amount to
recognise as income in a given périod.

The stage of campletion is also measured
by the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date compared to the
estimated total contract costs.

Amounts due from contract customers
{amounts recoverable on contracts) at the
period end are included in debtors and are
calculated at the estimated value of work
done at the balance sheet date that has not
been invoiced.

Cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial
instruments and in¢lude cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts ara shown within barrowings
in current liabilities.

Financial instruments

The Group has elected fo apply the
provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial
Instrumments’ and Section 12 '‘Other Financial
Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 1o all of its
financial ingtruments.

Financial instruments are recognised when
the Group becomes party to the caontractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset

and the net amounts presented in the
financial statements when there is a legally
enforceable right ta set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to setile on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the ltability simultanecusty.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include

trade and other receivables and cash

and bank balances, are initially measured
at transaction price including transaction
costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the arrangement constitutes
a financing transaction, where the financial
asset is measured at the present value of
the future receipts discounted at a market
rate of interesi.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, Including trade
investments, are initialiy measured at fair
value, which is normally the transaction
price. Such assets are subsequently carried
at fair value and the changes in fair value

are recognised in profit or loss, except that
invesiments in equity instruments thal are not
publicly traded and whose fair values cannot
be measured reliably are measured at cost
less impairment.

Impalrment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair
value through profit and loss, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each reporting
end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there

is objective evidence that, as a result of

one or more events that occurred afier the
initial recognition of the financial asset,

the estimated future cash flaws have

been affected. If an asset is impaired, the
impairment loss is the difference between
the carrying amount and tha present value of
the estimated cash flows discountad at the
asset's original effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss
arising from an event occurring after the
impairment was recogniséd, the impairment is
reversed. The reversal is such that the current
carrying amount does not exceed what the
camying amount would have been, had the
impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognised only
when the coniractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire or are seltled,
or when the Group transfers the financial
asgset and substantiafly a the risks and
rewards of ownership to another entity,

or if some significant risks and rewards

of ownership are retained but control of the
asset has transferred to another party that
is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party.
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Ctassification of financial liabilities
Financiatl liabilities and equity instruments
are classified accerding 1o the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and
other payables, bank loans, loans from fellow
group companies and preference shares that
are classified as debt, are initially recognised
al transaction price unless the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction, where the
debt instrument is measufed at the present
value of the futuré payments discounted at a
market rate of interest.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
raté method.

Daerecognltion of financial llabiiities
Financial liabifities are derecognised when,
and only when, the Group's contractual
obligations are discharged, cancelied,

or they expire,

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group

are recorded at the fair value of proceeds
feceived, net of transaction costs. Dividends
payable on equity instruments are recognised
as liabilittes once they are no longer at the
discration of the Group.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of

the current tax expense and deferred tax
expense. Current tax assets are recognised
when tax paid exceeds the tax payable.

Current and deferred tax is charged or
credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to iterns charged or credited to other
comprehensive incoma or equity, when the
tax follows the transaction or event it relates
to and is also charged or credited to other
comprehensive income, or equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset, if and anly if, there is &
legally enfarceable right to set off the amounts
and the entity intends either to settie on the
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liabiity simuftanecusly.

Current tax

Current tax is based on taxable profit for

the financial periad. Current tax assels ang
liabiliies are measured using tax rates that
have been enacted or subslantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Deferrad tax

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expecled to appiy to the period when

the asset is realised or the liability is settled
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in
respect of all timing differences that exist at
the reporting date. Timing differences are
differences between taxable profits and
total cornprehensive income that arise from
the inclusion of income and expenses in
tax assessmenis in different periods from
their recognition in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assels are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that they will be
recavered by the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities or other future taxable profits,

Deferred tax is récognised on income and
expenses from subsidlaries and interests

in jointly controlled entities, that will be
assessed to or allow for tax in a future period
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the timing difference and itis
probable that the timing difference will nct
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits

are recognised as a liability and an expense,
unless those costs are required to be
recognised as part of the cost of stock or non-
current assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitfement
is recognised in the period in which the
employee's services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised
immediately as an expense when the
Companyis demonstrably committed to
terrrinate the employmant of an employee or
to provide termination benefits.

Retirements benefits

For defined contribution schemes the amount
charged to profit or loss is the contributions
payable in the financial period. Differences
between contributions payable in the financial
periad and contributions actually paid are
shown as either accruals or prepayments.

The cost of providing benefits under defined
benefit plans is determined separately for
each plan using the projected unit credit
methed, and is based an actuarial advice.

The change in the net defined benefit iability
arising from employee secvice during the
financial period is recognised as an employee
cost. The cost of plan introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments are
recagaised as an expense in measuring profit
ar {oss in the period in which they arise.

The net interest element is determined by
multiplying the net defined benefit liability
by the discount rate, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liabiity
during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments. The net interest is
recognised in profit or loss as other finance
revente or cost.

Remeasurement changes comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling and the return on the net defined
benefit liability excluding amounts included
in netinterest. These are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur and are

not reclassified to profit and loss in
subsequent periods.

The Group also operates an employees'
defined benefit scheme, the details of which
are outlined below. The scheme is closed

{0 new entrants and no further contributions
will be made to the scheme, apart from
contributions 1o meet the shortfal in funding
as a result of the deficiency of assets.

The net defined benefit pension asset ar
liahifity in the balance sheet comprises the
total for each plan of the present value of
the defined benefit abligation (using the AA
corporate bond rate}, less the fair value of
plan assets out of which the obligations are
to be settled directly. Fair value is based an
market price information, and in the case of
quoted securities is the published bid price.
The value of a net pension benefit asset is
limited to the amount that may be recovered
either through reduced contributions or
agreed refunds from the scheme.

Leasas

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessees. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets at the tower of the
assets fair value at the date of inception

and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The related fiability is included in
the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are treated
as consisting of capital and interest elements.
The interest is charged fo profit or loss so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interast
an the remaining balance of the tiabitty.

Rentals payable under eperating leases,
including any lease incentives received,

are charged to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the term of the relevanit lease
except where another mare systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased
assel are consumed.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

Renlal income from operating leases is
recagnised on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. (nitial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at the
fair valua of the assets receivable when
there is reasonable assurance that the
grant conditions will be met and the grants
will be received.

A grant that specifies performance
conditions is recognised in income when
the performance cenditions are met. Where
a grant does not specify conditions, it is
recognised in income when the proceeds
are received or receivable. A grant received
bafore the recognition criteria are satisfied
as a liability.

2. Judgements and key sources of
éstimation uncertainty

in the application of the Group's accouriting
pdiicies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumplions
about the carrying amount.of assets angd.
liabilities that aré Rdt readily appareént from
othér sources. The estimates and assocjated
assumptioris are based on historical
experience and other factors that are
considered to be refevant. Actual results may
differ from thesé estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period in which the estimate is revised
where the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revisicn and future periods
where the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements

The following judgements (apart from those
involving estimatas) have had the most
significant effect on amounts recognised

in the financial statements.

Assessing indicators of impairment

In assessing whether there have been

any indicators of impairment of assets, the
directors have considered both external and
internat sources of information such as market
conditions, countarparty credit ratings and
experience of recoverahility. In respect of
the current period, impairments of bad and
doubtful trade debtor balances and unlisted
investments have been recognised in the
financial statements.

In the prior period, there was an impairment
to freehold and feasehold land arid buitdings.
In agsesging the indicdtors of the impairment
to freehald and feasehold land and buildings,
the directors reviewed the values of the
properties using internal knowladge of the
proparty market and obtaining third party
opinions where needed.

Stock and work in progress

Management estimates the expected
realisable value of stock and work in progress
by considering both external and internal
sources of information such as historic
perfarmance of simitar properties and market
conditions. in respect of the current year an
impairment of stock has been recegnised in
the financial statements.

Leases

In categorising leases as finance leases

or operating leases, management makes
judgements as to whether significant risks
and rewards of cwnership have transferred to
the Group as lesses.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which

have a significant fisk of causing a matariat
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities are as follows.

Revenue recognition in respect of
amounts recoverable on contracts

The Group uses estimation techniques
hased on the stage of completion of amounts
recoverable on contracts at the period end.
This requires the directors to estimate the
value of work completed on projects at the
period end in order to recagnise the revenue
attributable to this in the correct period.

Recoverabifity of receivables

The Group establishes a provision for
receivables that are estimated not to be
recoverable. When assessing recoverability
the directors consider factors such as

the ageing of the receivables and past
experience of recoverability.

Estimating value in use

Where an indication of impairment exists,
the directors will carry out an impairment
review to determine the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of fair value less cost

to seil and value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flaws expected Lo arise from
the asset or the cash generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value.

Determining residuat values and useful
econemic life of non-current assets
{property, plant and equipment)

The Group depreciates langible assets aver
their estimated useful lives. The estimation
of the useful lives of assets is based on
historic performance as well as expactations
about future use and therefore requires
estimates and assumptions to be applied by
management. The actual lives of these assets
can vary depending on a variety of factors,
including technolegical innovation, product
life cycles and maintenance programs.

Judgement is applied by managemant when
determining the residual values for tangibie
fixed assets. When determining the residual
value management aim to assess the amount
that the Group would currently obtain for the
disposal of the asset, if it were already of the
condition expected at the end of its useful
econamic life. Where possible this is done
with reference to external market prices.

Doforred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
timing differences to the extent that it is
probable they will be recoverable against
the reversal of a deferred tax asset at the
rate of taxation expected at that date. At the
reporting end date there were no indicators
the deferred tax assel was not recoverable.

Onerous contracts

Management produce detailed contract
budgets and end of life forecasts in order
to assess the total costs to complete open
contracts and assess the final forecast
contract margin. Where these forecasts
suggest an overall loss will be recorded
on the contract, a full provision for the
loss expected on the onerous contract is
recorded. There is a degree of management
estimation in determining tha leve! of total
estimated costs for a project.

Defined benefit pension scheme

in measuring the estimated defined benefit
pension obligation, management uses a set
of assumptions. This set of assumptions is
darived with the involvement of a qualified
third party actuary and requires significant
judgement in considering whether thay are
appropriate. Given the sensitive nature of
these assumptions, the resulting impact
on the obligation recognised at the period
end and {uture periods may change. The
assumptions selected and additional
information are provided in note 28.
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3. Revenue

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Revenue analysed by class of business
Civil engineering utilities contracting 248,056 280.584
Residential property development 3,002 2094
Plant hire 2,495 1.377
Traffic management 1,663 1,589
255,216 295,644
The Group's revenue is generated solely from its activities in the United Kingdem.
4, Other income
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Other income 4,237 N

Included within other income are governmaent grants of £3,733,826 (2020: £Nil) received in relation to COVID-19 support
and £9,000 (2020: £N#) in relation to other government grants.

5. Employees

The average monthly number of persons {including diractors) employed by the Group and Company during the peried was:

Group Group Company
2021 2020 2021
No. Na. No.
Directors and management 196 216 5
Supervisary staff 119 134 -
Operativas 1914 2,130 -
2,229 2,480 5

Their aggregate remunaration comprised:
Group Group Company
2021 2020 2021
£000 £000 £'000
Wages and sataries 88.211 100,300 -
Social security costs 8,874 9,928 -
Pension costs 2,350 2,503 -
99,435 112,731 -
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' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Directors’ remuneration

Group
Remuneration for gualifying services
Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

Remuneration for qualifying services
Campany pension contributions to defined contribution schemes

The nuraber of Directors for whom retiremant benefits are accruing under defined pension contribution

schemes amounted to 6 (2020: 6).

7. Operating profit/{loss)

Operating profit/(loss) for the financial period is stated after
charging/{crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment in relation {o:
= pwned assets

= assets held under finance leases

Impairment of owned praperty, piant and equipment
Impairment of unlisted investmenits

Profit an disposal of property, plant and equipment
Inventories impairment losses recognised

Operating lease charges

8. Auditor’s remuneration

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates:

For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the Group and Company
Audit aof the financial statements of the Company's subsidiaries

For other services

Taxation compliance services
Cther taxation services

All other non-audit services

2021 2020
£000 £000
2,099 1,888

132 123

2,23t 2,011

2021 2020
£'000 £7000

475 268
4 10

2021 2020
£000 £'000
7.416 6,681
2,355 2,878

- 1,000

108 -
(2.169) (1.472)
- 26

134 142

2021 2020

£000 £'000
17 18

87 65
104 83

2 2

8 15

25 ik

35 28
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9. Investment income

Interest income

Interest on bank depaosits

interest receivable from group companies
Olhen inleresl income

Total interest revenue

Other income from invastments
Dividends received

Total income

10. Finance costs

intersst on bank overdrafts and loans

Dividends on preference shares not classified as equity
interest on finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

Total fingance costs

11. Other losses

Amounts written off financial assets held al cost

12. Taxation

Current tax

UK corporation tax on profits for the period
Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Other taxes

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Originaticn and reversal of timing differences
Changes in tax rates

Total deferred tax

Total tax charge

2021 2020
£000 £000
7 20

- 1

16 &

23 27

1 2

24 23
2021 2020
£000 £:000
67 247

18 6
333 3r2
77 a2
493 707
2021 2020
£'000 £000
- 5
2021 2020
£000 £000
1440 800
(86) (50)

- (284)
1,354 466
41 (233)

- (180)

741 (413)
2,005 53
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' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For tha period endad 28 March 2021

12. Taxation continued

The total tax charge for the period included in the income statement can be reconciled to the profit before tax multiplied by the standard rate
of tax as follows:

201 2020

£'000 £'000

Prafit before taxation 11.068 3,530
Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of carporation Lax in the UK of 18% (2020: 19%) 2103 671
Tax effect of expenses that aré not deductible in determining taxable profit 236 30
Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profit )] (3)
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets (151) (248)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (86) (50
Effect of change in corparation tax rate - {233)
Research and development tax credit - (264)
Cther permanent differences - (20)
Other tax adjustments - 190
Taxation charge/(credit} 2095 53

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised directly in other comprehensive
income:

201 2020
£'000 £'000

Deferred tax arising on:
Actuarial differences recognised as other comprehensive income 91) (45)

In March 2020, the Finance Bill 2020 was enacted and included legislation 10 hold the main rate of corporation tax at 19% with effect from 1
April 2020, an increase from 17% as announced in the 2015 Finance Act. As this change was substantively enacled at the balance sheet date,
deferred tax is recognised at 19% in the current period (2020: 19%).

In the March 2021 Budget, it was anngunced that the UK tax rate will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. This will have a consequential effect
an the Group's fulure tax charge.

13. Discontinued operations

In the prior period, the subsidiary, Clancy Docwra Limited, discontinued its contract with Scottish Power Energy Networks, as planned.
The financial results for the Scottish Power contract are disclosad in the discontinued operations column in the Consalidated Statement
of Comprehensive income in 2020.

in the current period, the subsidiary, Clancy Docwra Limited, discontinued its Mulli Utifity businass in England as planned. The financial resulls
for its Multi Utility business are disclosed in the discontinued operations column in the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in
2021 and 2020.

14. Dividends
2021 2020
NOTES £'000 £'000
Interim paid - £0.47 (2020 £1.54) per Ordinary share 612 200
Non cash distribution - issue of preference shares 25 10,400 -
11,012 200
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15. iImpairments

Impairment tests have been carried out where appropriate and the following impairment losses have been recognised in profit or loss:

2024 2020
£'000 £'000
In respect of:
Property, plant and equipment . 1.000
Unlisted investments 108 -
Recognised in:
Adminisirative expenses 108 1,000
The impairment losses in respect of financial assets are recognised in administrative expenses in the income statement. The impairments
have been calculated foliowing a review of the recoverable values of the Group's freehold and leasehold land and buildings performed
by the directors in the prior period.
16. Intangible assets
Group Goodwill
E'000
Cost
At 30 March 2020 and 28 March 2021 74
Amortisation and impairment
At 30 March 2020 and 28 March 2021 74

Carrying amount
At 298 March 2020 and 28 March 2621

The Company had no intangible fixed assets at 28 March 2021 or 30 March 202G.

The goodwill arose on the acquisition of Clancy Docwra Parkover Limited in 2005 and has now been fuily amortised.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements (confinued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

17. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Lé_ﬁsehoid Furniture,
land and land'and fittings, plant
buildings buildings and equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost a E
At 30 March 2020 14,408 A /¢ [¢ 67,51 B2,919
Additions - - 18,930 19,930
Disposals - - {17,605) (17,605}
Al 28 March 2021 14,408 1,000 69,836 85,244
Depreciation and impairment
At 30 March 2020 665 360 41,462 42,487
Charge for the period - - 8,771 8,77t
Eliminated in respect of dispesals - - (16,041} (16,041
AL 28 March 2021 665 360 35,192 36,217
Carrying amount
At 28 March 2021 13,743 640 34,644 49,027
At 29 March 2020 13,743 640 26,049 40,432
Freehold land
Company and bulldings
£:000
Cost
AL 5 March 2020 -
Group transfer 10,511
At 28 March 2021 T s
Depreciation and Impairment T
At 5 March 2020 and 28 March 2621 -
Carrylng amount
At 28 March 2021 10,511

As part of the Group recrganisation {see note 20, fraehold tand and buildings of £10,511.000 were transferred fram subsidiary undertakings
to the parent Company.

The nat carrying value of tangible fixed assets includes the following in raspect of assets held under finance leases:

2024 2020
Group £'000 £:000
Furniture, fittings, plant and equipment 9,949 11,840
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18. Investments

Group Group Company
2021 2020 2021
NOTES £000 £'000 £'000
Investments in subsidiaries 18 - - 130
Listed imvastnerdls 2] 5 -
Unlisted investments - 108 -
5 113 130
Listed investments carrying amount 5 5 -
Markel value if different from carrying amount 26 27 -
Movements in nen-current investments Investments
other than loans
Group £'000
Cost or valuation
At 30 Masch 2020 and 28 March 2021 113
Impairment
At 30 March 2020 -
lmpairment losses 108
At 28 March 2021 108
Carrying amount
At 28 March 2021 5
At 29 March 2020 113
Movements in non-current investments Shares
in Group
Company undertakings
£'000
Cost
At 5 March 2020 -
Additions 130
At 28 March 2021 130
Carrying amount
At 28 March 2021 130
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- CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

19. Subsidiaries

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 28 March 2021 are as follows:

Nama of undertaking Registered office Nature of business Class of shares % Held
held

The Clancy Group Ltd As below A holding and property Ordinary 100
management company

Clancy Plant Limited As below Hiring plant and the service Ordinary 100
provision of traffic management

Clancy Developments Limited* As betow Residential developmant Ordinary 100

Ciancy Docwra Limited* As belaw Civit engineering, construction Ordinary 100
and utilities contracting

Clancy Dacwra Parkover Limited™ As below Dormant Ordinary 100

Clancy Docwra/VWS (UK) JV Limited* As below Dormant Ordinary 100

Clancy tnvestments Limited* As below Darmant Crdinary 100

EEC Linings Limited* As below Dermant Qrdinary 100

Heritage (Breakspear) Limited* As balow Dormant QOrdinary 100

M.J.Clancy & Sons Limiteg* As below Dormant Ordinary 100

Misbourne House Limited” As belfow Pormant Ordinary 100

Rees Pipsline Services Limited* As balow Dormant Ordinary 100

Westwick Construction Limited* As below Dormant Ordinary 100

Breakspears Management Company Limited* As below Dormant Ordinary 100

*Indirectly held

The above companies’ registered office is Clare House, Coppermili Lane, Harefield, Middlesex, UB9 6HZ.

Clancy Developments Limited, Clancy Docwra Limited, Clancy Docwra Parkover Limited, Clancy Investments Limited, EEC Linings Limited and
Misbaurne House Limited are 100% awned by The Clancy Graug Lid.

Clancy Docwra/VWS {UK) JV Limited, M.J.Clancy & Sons Limited, Rees Pipeline Services Limited and Westwick Construction Limited are
100% owned by Clancy Docwra Limited.

Heritage (Breakspear) Limited is 100% owned by Clancy Developments Limited.

Breakspears Management Company Limited is 100% owned by Heritage (Breakspear) Limited.

ln order for the subsidiary enlities Clancy Docwra Parkover Limited, Clancy Docwra/VYWSs (UK} JV Limited, Clancy Investments Limited,

EEC Linings Limited, Heritage {Breakspear) Limited, M..J .Clancy & Sons Limited, Misbourne House Limited, Rees Pipeline Services Limited,
Westwick Canstruction Limited and Breakspears Management Cornpany Limited to take the audit exemption in section 479A of the Companies
Act 2006, the company has guaranteed all outstanding liahilities of thase subsidiary entities.

All of the subsidiaries above have been consalidated in the financial statements.
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19. Subsidiaries continued

Joint Arrangements

Optimise {Water) LLP

Ctancy Docwra Limited is in a joint venture with J Murphy & Sons Limited, Barhale Constructicn Plc and MWH UK Limited, who together formed
Optimise (Water} LLP, a limited liabitity partnership registered in England and Wales. The principal aclivity of the joirt arrangement is that of
utilities contracting.

The structure has the appearance of a joint venlure, but it is used only as a means for each participant to camry on its own business, Therefore,
in order to reflect the sulbstance of its operations, Clancy Docwra Limited has accounied directly for its share of the assets, liabifities and cash
flows arising in the entity in accordance with FRS102 Section 15.

The groug recognises the profit of losses attributable to it from the joint arrangement in its profit and loss account where the outcome of the
venture is reasonably certain.

KCD Joint Venture
Clancy Docwra Limited is in a joint arrangement with Kier MG Limited where an agreement has been made to collaborate as an integrated
unincorporated joint venture. The principal activity of the joint vanture is that of utilities contracting.

The structure of the joint venture is similar to Optimise (Waler) LLP and, therefore, the Group financial slalements directly for its share of the
assets, liabilities and cash flows arising from the joint arrangement with Kier MG Limited in accardance with FR$102 Seclion 15.

The Group recognises the prafit or losses atiributable to it from the joint arrangement in its profit and loss account where the outcome of the
venture is reasanably certain. During the financial period, the Group recognised a profit of £22,000 (2020: £100,000) in respect of Cptimise
(Water) LLP and a profit of £2,078,000 (2020: £2,731.000) in respect of KCD Joint Venture.

20. Group reorganisation
In June 2020, the Group undertook a carporate re-crganisation in order to rationalise the group structure.

As part of this re-organisation, on 17 June, the Company acquirad the entire share capital of The Clancy Group Ltd by way of a share for share
exchange transaction. This acquisition met the conditions to qualify for the use of the merger accounting methodology set out in Section 18 of
FRS 102, and the Directors have accordingly applied this approach.

Yo complete the re-organisation, on 30 June 2020, the Company acquired Clancy Plant Limited. Both combining companies were wholly-
owned by the Clancy family; there was no substantive change to their relative rights as a result of the business cambination and no payment of
fair value consideration was made, therefore the transaction has been regarded by the Directors as a group reconstruction in substance, and
the merger accounting methodclogy set outin Section 19 of FRS 102 has been applied.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

‘. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Inventories

Group

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress

Bulk fuels

Spare parts

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
3,508 3,676
5817 9417

6 21
247 441
9,678 13,555

Following management’s review of assets for impairment, work in progress above is stated net of a provision of £1,384,000 (2020: £734,000)
which has been charged to the income statement and is included within cost of sales.

22. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work
Amounits owed by group undertakings

Other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income

Deferred tax asset

NOTES

27

Group Group Company
2021 2020 2024
£'000 ‘£'000 £'000
12,719 14,998 -
26,983 29,404 -
- - 15,255

445 821 -
2483 1,951 ;
42,630 47174 15,255
1,334 1,984 -
43,964 49,158 15,255

Following management's review of assets for impairment, trade receivables above are stated net of a provision of £424,000 (2020: £1,369,000)

against bad debts.

The Group has a facility whereby it can drew down payment of sales invoices early from ona customer. At 28 March 2021, £Nit (2020:

£5,483,000) net and ENil (2020 £6,434,000) gross had been drawn down.

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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23. Current liabilifies

Group Group Comtpany
201 2020 2021
NOTES £000 £000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafis 25 - 2.250 -
Obligations under finance leases 26 2,740 4,448 -
Trade payables 15,464 22,690 -
Gross amounts owed to contract customers 2457 - -
Amaunts owed to group undertakings - - 8,747
Corporation tax payable 1,325 491 1,192
Cther taxation and sccial security 6,367 8,822 -
Other payables 5,565 6,041 -
Accruals and deferred income 32,696 25,550 220
66,614 70,292 10,159
Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
24, Non-current liabilities
Group Group Company
2024 2020 2021
NOTES £'000 £'000 £'000
Other borrawings 25 10,614 1,272 10,614
Obligations under finance leases 26 6,280 8,185 -
16,854 9,457 10,614
25. Borrowings
Group Group Company
2021 2020 2021
£'000 £000 £'000
Bank loans - 2,250 -
Redeemable praference shares 214 1,272 214
Non-redeemable preference shares 10,400 - 10,400
10,614 3,522 10,614
Payable within one year - 2,250 -
Payable after one year 16,614 1.272 10,614

The bank loan, which was secured by Group cross guarantee and incusred interest at 3.5%, was repaid in fult during the period.

The Graup's bank holds a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Company and also specific fixed charges over ons of the

Group's properties.

In the prior period, redeemable preference shares of £1,272,000 were issued to the sharehoiders at an issue price of £1 per share. £1,058,000
of the principal was repaid in the current period. The remaining £214,000 redeemable preference shares accrue a fixed cumulative preferential

dividend of 3% payable annually from 31 March 2021. The principal amaunt is repayable on 31 March 2025,

On 5 March 2021, non-redeemable preference shares of £10,400,000 were issued to the shareholders at an issue price of £1 per share financed
by a dividend from the Company. The shares accrue a fixed cumulative preferential dividend of 3%, payable annually from 31 March 2021.

None of the preference shares above carry any equity compenent and they are classified as financial liabilities in their entirety,
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26. Finance lease obligations

Group

Future minimum lease payments due under finance leases:
Less than one year
Between aone and five years

Finance lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for cartain items of piant and machinery. Leases include purchase options

at the end of the lease pericd, and no restrictions are placed on the use of the assets. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been enterad into for contingent rental payments. Finance lease liabilities are secured on the assets being leased.

27. Deferred taxation

The major deferred tax assets recognised by the Group and Gompany are:

Group

{Decelerated)/accelerated capital allowances
Retirement benefit abligations

Shart term timing differences

Fixed asset timing differences

Tax losses carried forward

Group
Movements in tha 52 week pariod:

Asset at 30 March 2020
Charge to profit or loss
Credit to other comprehensive income

Asset at 28 March 2021

The Company has no deferred tax assets or liabilities at 28 March 2021.

2021 2020
£'000 £000
2,740 4,448
6,280 8,185
8,020 12,633

Assets Assets

2021 2020

£'000 £000
(6) 4
599 750
17 B
710 1,219
14 -
1,334 1,984
2029

£000

{1,084)

™

(oh

(1,334)

The deferred tax asset set out above is expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. The deferred tax asset relates to the value of depreciation
charges in these financial statements exceading the value allowed for tax purposes through capital allowances, and it also relates to the Group's

retirement benefit obligations for the Group's defined benefit scheme.
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28. Retirement benefit schemes

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Defined contribution schemes
Charge to profit or lass in respect of defined cantribution schemes 2,350 2,503

A defined contribution pension scheme is operated for all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Company and Group and independenity administered through Standard Life.

Al the balance sheet date, contributions amounting to £494,000 (2020: £323,060} had not been paid to the fund and are included within
other creditors.

Defined benefit schemes

The Group is a member of a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, being invested with insurance companies. Contributions to the scheme are charged to the profit and loss account

50 as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with companies within the Group headed by Clancy Group Heldings Ltd.
The confributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit mathod. The most recent
valuation was at 14 March 2019.

Details of the main actuarial assumptions are given below. At 28 March 2021, there were no contributions payable to the fund to be included
in creditors {2020: ENif).

The most recent actuarial valuation showed that the market value of the scheme's assets was £20,048,000 and that the actuarial value of those
assets represents 91% of the benefits that had accrued 1o members, after allowing for expected increases in earnings. There will be no further
contributions to this scheme as the scheme was closed on 31 March 2610, apart from funding for the accrued pensions to date.

Contributions and charges
£2,384,000 (2020: £382,000) was paid into the defined benetit scheme to further fund pensions accrued to date.

As indicated above, the Company operates a defined benefit scheme. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 14 March 2019
and updated to 28 March 2021 by a gualified independent actuary. The principal assumptions used by the aciuary are outlined befow.

2021 2020
% %

Key assumptions
Discount rate 1.9 23
Expected rate of increase of pensions in payment 3.6 3.3
Retadl price infiation 35 29
Consumer price inflation 3.4 54
Deferred pension revaluation 31 2.4
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

28, Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

2621 2026

Years Years
Mortality assumptions
Assuried life expectations on retirement at age 65:
= Males 22,7 21.8
» Females 245 237
Retiring in 20 yeéars
& Males 24.7 231
= Females 26.6 25.2

Mortality assumptions
Mortality follows the standard table known as SIPA, using 97% (2020: 100%) of the base table with
CMI_2015 mertality projections with a long term rate of improvement of 1.75% (2020: 1.25%).

2021 2020
Amounis recognised in the income statement £'000 £'a00
Net interest on defined benefit liability/(asset) 77 82

2021 2020
Amounts taken to other comprehensive income £'000 £'000
Actual return on scheme assets {2,455) 1,023
Less: calculated interest element 359 412
Returns on scheme assets exciuding interest income {2,096} 1,435
Actuarial changes related to cbligations 2,576 (1,173)
Total costs 480 282

The amounts included in the statement aof financial position arising fram the Group's obligations
in respect of defined benefit plans are as follows:

2021 2020

£900 £000

Present value of defined benefit obligations 21,766 19,458
Fair vazlue of plan assefs {20,048) (15,903}
Deficit in scheme 1,718 3,555
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obiigations £'000
Liabilities at 30 March 2020 19,458
Benefits paid {704)
Actuarial lossas 2,576
Interest cost 436
At 28 March 202t 21,766

——————e——
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28. Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

The defined benefil obligalions arise from plans funded as follows: 2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Wholly or partly funded obligations 21,766 19,458
Mavements in the fair value of plan assels £'000
Fair value of assets at 30 March 2020 15,903
Interest income 359
Return on plan assels (excluding amounts included in net interast) 2,096
Benefits paid (704)
Contributions by scheme members 2,394
At 28 March 2021 20,048

T

The actual return on plan assets was a gain of £2,455,000 (2020: £1,023,000 expense).

The analysis of the scheme assets at the reporting date were 2021 2020
as follows: £'000 £'000
Invested assels 20,048 15,903

29. Share capital

2021 2020
Group and company £000 £'000
Ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
1,300,000 Ordinary shares of £0.10 each 130 130

Onincarporation on 5 March 2020, the Gompany issued 2 ordinary shares with a nominal value of £1 each.

On 17 June 2020, the Company issued 99,998 shares of £1 each in consideration for the entira issued share
capital of The Clancy Group Lid.

On 30 June 2020, the Company issued 30,000 shares of £1 each in consideration for the share capital of
Ctancy Plant Limited.

On 19 September 2020, the Cempany subdivided its 130,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of £1
each into 1,300,000 ordinary shares of £0.10 each.

The Company's ordinary shares each carry the righi to one vote at general meetings of the Company and
rank pari passu in ail respects,
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30. Reserves

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserves arising as a result of a group reconstruction {(see noie 20).

Retained earnings

Retained earmings represent cumulative profit and loss, net of distributions to ewners.

31. Cash generated from operations

Profit for the period after tax

Adjustments for:

Taxation charge

Finance costs

Investment incame

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and impairment of graperty, plant and equipment
Other losses

Pensian scheme nan-cash mavemeant

Mavements in warking cagital:

» Decrease in inventories

« [Decrease in trade and other receivables
» Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

32, Analysis of changes in net funds - group

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank foans
Preference shares
QObligations under finance feases

Net cash

2021 2020

£000 E'000

8,973 3,477

2,095 53

493 707

{24) (29)

(2.469) (1.471)

9,771 11,326

108 5

{2,394) {382)

3877 1,868

4,544 8,808

{1.741) {(4,026)

23,533 20,336

29 March 28 March
2020 Cash flows 2021
£'000 £'000 £000
21,857 78 21,935
21,857 78 21,935
(2:250) 2,250 -
{1,272) (9,342) (10,614)
(12,633} 3,613 (9,020)
5,702 (3.401) 2301
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

For the period ended 28 March 2021

37. Related party fransactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption not to disclose key management persennel compensation because the
anly key management personnel are the directors, and there is a legal requirement to disclose directors’ remuneration.

Transactions with related parties
During the 52 week period, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Sales Sales
2021 2020
£000 £'000

Group
Other refated parties 35,654 40,725
Purchases Purchases
2021 2020
£000 £'000

Group
Other related parties 77 281

The following amounts were cutstanding at the reporting end date:

Amounts due to related parties 2021 2020
£'000 £000

Group
Key management personnel 263 155

No guarantees have been given or received. All the amounts are interest free and repayable on demand.

38. Directors’ transactions

Dividends totalling £312,000 (2020: £172,000) were paid in the perod in respect of shares held by the Company's Directors.

During the period, preference shares of £5,700,800 were issued to the Company's Directors and no interest on these felt due in
the periad. interest of £6,000 was paid on redeemable preference shares held by Directars.

39. Controlling party

There is no overall controlling party.

Clangcy Group Holdings Limited is the parent of the smallest and largest group for which gonsolidated financiat statements are
prepared and of which the Company is & member.
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Streamlined energy and

carbon reporting statement

»

Corporate and Social Responsibility Performance

tCO.e ("equivalent tonnes of CO,") reduction.

Clancy Group Holdings limited Unit of Emissions 202012021 201912020
202y - 2021 report Measurement Scope UK (nc offshore UK (no offshore
epergy use) energy use)

[ Emissions from gas / combustion of gas H tCOze “ 1 ” 1,581.18 ”1988.5? —l
| Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes “ tCOze ” 1 ” 17,284.59 ” 20,983.19 —I
| Total Scope 1: ” 18,865.77 HE,SStTG —l
rEmissions from purchased electricity ” COe ” 2 “ 208.90 “ 301.74 —l
| Total Scopo 2: H 208.90 ” 301.74 |

Emissions from business travel in renial cars or employee- tCO2e 3 222.35 375.72

owned vehicles & one-off purchases of fue! - where the

company is respansible for purchasing the fuel

Emissions from business trave} using commercial flight tCOse 3 1.09 23.54

{UK and Global)
ﬁta! Scope 3: ” 223.44 " 399.26 j
I Tota! Energy consumption ” Mwh ” 79,418.86 |L95,138.34 ‘i
[Total Gross emissions based an the above ” tCQqe ” 18,288.11 |L23,652.76 ]
ﬂntensity Ratio || 1CO:qe per Emillion turnover —” 75.19 “ 80.41 I
Methodology Scope 1 white diesel data {for = Scope 3 emissions, from employes

The provided data has been assessed using
the below methodologies calcutating energy
consumption and emissions using the .gov
"Greanhouse Gas reporting: canversion
factors 2020™

= Scope 1 combustion of gas data (litres)
has been downloaded from the Group
procurement system {FS, taking the bulk
volumes purchased from each transaction
for assessment. Transactions cover: red
diesel, kerosene and petrol.

» Scope 1 combustion of gas data (litres)
has taken petral volumas reported on
from the group data reparting process.

« Scope 1 emissions fram gas includes
loss of HCFC through refrigerant systems
across the organisation. Calculated by
required top-up volumes of HCFC for
the specified pericd. Consignment
Notes for transfer of the waste confirm
volumes remaved,

transportation - measured in litres)
has heen downloaded from the fuel
management system offered as part
of a service agreement with the Group
fue! provider. All data is accurate in
accordance with station forecourt
transactions.

Scope 2 emissions from purchased

electricity was calculated from values

invoiced by the organisation’s suppliers; =
Invoices arg retained on our procurement
system IFS. Due to limitations with the
readiness of data for the reporting period,
calculations have been used to estimate
missing invoices. In total 65% of the data

is accurate.

owned vehicles (and claimed purchases
of fuel}, is coliated by the business
through the expanses process. Claimed
expenses (£'s} are used to estimate the
number of litres of fuet purchased {using
an average £ per litre aver the specified
period). This Is then used to calculate
emissions by applying the GHG
conversion factars.

Scope 3 emissions from fights are
coliated by the business during the
expenses process; flight distances (km)
are used to calculate the footprint,

Clancy

} Anrnual Report and Accounts 2021 )

67



Corporate and Social
Responsibility Performance
(continued)

Clarifications

Due to changes with the organisation
structure at the start of 2020/2021 the
declared performance datd how covers all
businessés under the financial control of
Clancy Graup Holdings Limited., This differs
to the previous year report where one of the
subsidiaries, Clancy Plant, was exempt fram
reparting. As such the figurés provided for
2019/2020 have been recalculated using the
currérit year's scope.

Energy efficiency action

tn 2020 Clancy Group Holdings Limited
launched its new vision aligned with
delivering sustainable infrastructure

and through this supporting the UK net-
zero emissions agenda. The company
journey towards this is communicated as
a measurement against two important
milastones: reducing emissions by 50%
by 2025 and achieving nat-zero emissions
by 2030.

In working towards these milestones the
business has designed future action to
address areas that are material to the

totat emissions. This particularly relates

1o the business’ reliance on white diese!
which for the past four years equates 1o
approximately 90% of energy the business
consures. Key actions to address this
includes a continuation of plans to introduce
electric vehicles into the company fleet and
incorporating renewable energy as a commaon
source of power for plant, equipment, and
vehicles. The success of this initiative will
ke evidenced through how Clancy Graup
Ho!ding Limited, and its subsidiaries,
decouple econamic growth from a reliance
on fossil fuels.

In addition to this, we are investigating

and building-in circular economies to our
everyday business activities, This includes
targeting waste as a resource and adopting

a comprehensive approach 1o the sustainable
management of natural resources.

68 } Annual Reportand Accounts 2021 ) Clancy

e -



, T A
E S R AT
- el T
AR
. X
'

e

69

Clahcy ) AnnualReportand Accounts 2021 -} -




C’ Clancy

Head Office

Clare House,
Coppermill Lane,
Harefield, Middlesex,
UB9 6HZ

T: 01895 823 711
v theclancygroup.co.uk




